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Highlights from 2004

Highlights

The international community’s focus on risk and the increasing tendency towards zero tolerance of

accidents has resulted in a high level of demand for safety and quality services, which are DNV’s core

areas.

Local officesHead office Main support and service centres

26 MARCH
DNV was the first company to be accredited by the UN
Framework Convention on Climate Change to validate
climate change mitigation projects where companies in
industrialised countries invest in greenhouse gas abatement
in the developing world (CDM projects).

1 APRIL
DNV passed the 100 million-gross tons mark by taking
Danaos Shipping’s container ship P&O Nedlloyd Caracas into
class on delivery from Korea’s Samsung Heavy Industry yard.

13 SEPTEMBER
DNV Research celebrated its 50th anniversary.

1 OCTOBER
DNV Certification launched Risk Based Certification™, 
its exclusive approach to all management system 
certification.

4 DECEMBER
DNV celebrated its 140th anniversary.

MILESTONES

DNV MARITIME
The total DNV-classed fleet:
5,083 ships and offshore installations (5,100 in 2003), 
16,6 per cent of the world fleet (16,4 percent in 2003).

DNV CERTIFICATION 
ISO 9001: 39,634 certificates
ISO 14001: 6,033 certificates
Other certificates: 12,767
Total certificates: 58,434 (45,542 in 2003).

DNV TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
DNV-classed rigs:
158 offshore installations (147 in 2003), including mobile rigs,
jack-ups, floating production ships and drill ships, 
representing 17 per cent of the total number of units.

DNV CONSULTING 
High level of impact on client's business performance 
in delivering DNV's objective. 

STATUS

With the objective of safeguarding life, property, and the environment, 2004 was a year 

of considerable activity in all DNV’s four business areas; DNV Maritime, DNV Certification, 

DNV Technology Services and DNV Consulting.

Det Norske Veritas
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> Profit for the year 2004 

NOK 148 million

> Operating revenue for the 

year 2004 NOK 5,957 million
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DNV Maritime DNV Certification DNV Technology Services DNV Consulting

6,200 people in 300 offices in 100 countries.
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DNV in brief

Managing risk is at the core of everything we

do, all over the world. Whether we classify a

ship, certify an automotive company’s man-

agement system, or advise on how to best

take care of an aging oil platform, manag-

ing risk is our main focus and priority.

DNV is an independent, autonomous

foundation. This means that we can balance

the needs of business and society, based on

our independence and integrity.

GLOBAL REACH
DNV is an international company with 300

offices in 100 different countries. Head-

quartered in Oslo, Norway, DNV’s global

network is linked together by state-of-the-art

information technology that enables us to

create value for our customers in a consis-

tent manner worldwide. 

Our prime assets are the creativity, know-

ledge, and expertise of our 6,200 employees

from more then 80 different nations, most

of them highly qualified.

OUR BUSINESS AREAS
DNV operates in multiple industries inter-

nationally, and is organised into four busi-

ness areas. 

DNV MARITIME 
DNV Maritime is a world-leading classifica-

tion society, helping the maritime industry

to manage risk in all phases of a ship’s life,

through ship classification, statutory certifica-

tion, fuel testing, and a range of technical,

business risk and other competence-based

services. DNV Maritime develops rules and

establishes requirements to ships, and our

surveyors ensure that these requirements

are met.

DNV TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
DNV Technology Services is a leading suppli-

er of services to the oil, gas, energy, and

process industries, leveraging our cutting-

edge technologies, industry knowledge, and

global network. We help our customers create

confidence and enhance performance in all

phases of their assets’ lifetimes through tech-

nology qualification, risk-based verification,

offshore classification, and asset-operation

services. DNV Technology Services makes

R&D results and recent industry experience

available through the DNV Offshore Codes,

thus establishing an industry standard. 

DNV CERTIFICATION
DNV Certification is a world-leading certifi-

cation body in verification, assessment, and

certification, providing trust and confidence

to customers and stakeholders. Our customer

base includes small and large companies in

most industries. Key industries are food,

automotive, aviation, and finance.

DNV CONSULTING
DNV Consulting is a different type of con-

sulting firm, combining business risk and

technical competence with genuine industry

knowledge and a strong business orienta-

tion. DNV Consulting helps clients to safely

and responsibly improve their business per-

formance by providing state-of-the-art solu-

tions to a wide range of issues involving safe-

ty, security, environmental and business

risks. The primary market sectors include

upstream oil and gas, the process industries,

transportation, utilities, ICT, food and bev-

erage and the public sector. 

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE
DNV invests in research to develop future

services that will safeguard life, property

and the environment. Through exploring

new technologies and building knowledge,

our customers are provided with the best

possible value over a long-term perspective. 

Wherever we are, and whatever we do –

6,200 DNV colleagues take pride in working

for a knowledge based organisation with a

broad range and depth of competence.

Taking pride in managing risk
Established in 1864, Det Norske Veritas (DNV) has the objective of safeguarding life, 

property, and the environment. Our core competence is to identify, assess, and advise 

on how to manage risk. 
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President’s introduction

to safeguard life, 

property, and the environment

> Chief Technology Officer Wiggo Smeby

> President and Chief Executive Officer 

Miklos Konkoly-Thege

> Chief Legal Officer Amund W. Skou

> COO DNV Technology Services 

Elisabeth Harstad

> Chief Relations and Communications 

Officer Tom Virik

> Chief Financial Officer Torolf Aadnesen

> Chief Human Resource and Organisation

Officer Paul S. Campbell

> COO DNV Maritime Tor E. Svensen

> COO DNV Consulting Iain M. Light

> COO DNV Certification Henrik O. Madsen

THE DNV MANAGEMENT TEAM, from left: 

“ ”



Increased transparency is a growing expec-

tation regarding all aspects of society – not

least the business community. Business per-

formance is today far more than a compa-

ny’s financial bottom line, and needs to be

reported on accordingly. 

Managing the new risk reality means staying

ahead in all facets of sustainable develop-

ment: economically, environmentally and

socially. This is referred to as the triple 

bottom line; representing a balance which

increasingly focuses on the need to align

corporate goals with those of society. 

DNV’s customers, employees, and society at

large expect corporate transparency, and

that our business decision-making is linked

to ethical values.

Transparency is demanding. It exposes busi-

ness practices and behaviour, and thus be-

comes an important mechanism for demon-

strating ethical and sound business perform-

ance. At the same time, the risks involved in

running substandard – or unethical – opera-

tions increase.

It is hardly controversial any longer to state

that the business community has obligations

far beyond maximising profit. Furthermore,

meeting “non-financial” objectives is key to

long term sustainability. There are obliga-

tions to society, represented by the environ-

mental consequences of operations, and

both political and social implications in

local communities.

The Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) is a

multi-stakeholder process and independent

institution, whose mission is to develop and

disseminate globally applicable sustainability-

reporting guidelines. DNV supports the GRI

with its guidelines on triple bottom line re-

porting, and this year we are broadening

our reporting routines.

We have introduced key elements from the

GRI in the way we report on DNV’s perfor-

mance in 2004. We believe this gives a more

complete picture of our contribution to our

customers and to the society in which we

operate, and that it reflects the core DNV

values in a holistic manner.

Triple bottom line-reporting is a very rele-

vant approach for DNV, as an independent

foundation, to report on how we meet our

objective. This objective is “to safeguard life,

property, and the environment” while run-

ning an efficient and profitable operation.  

In conclusion, I am reasonably satisfied with

meeting our goals on all three fronts, based

primarily on the dedicated efforts of all our

6,200 employees.

President’s introduction
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Board of Directors’ report

> Knut Vågnes

> Unni Marsteinstredet Aagedal

> John H. Wiik

> Bente Rathe 

> Axel C. Eitzen

> C. Maury Devine

> Atle Bergshaven

> Audun Brandsæter

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DNV, from left (Tom Ruud was not present when the photo was taken): 



To create a sustainable business and meet

the expectations of stakeholders and society

at large, DNV has focused on providing ser-

vices of a high quality. This commitment to

quality has resulted in an unprecedented

growth in the demand for DNV class. As

much as 20 per cent of contracted new ton-

nage in 2004 is being built to DNV rules. In

the global Port State Control statistics, DNV-

classed vessels have the lowest detention ratio.

The introduction of Risk Based CertificationTM

represents a revitalisation of management

system certification that has been applauded

by both accreditation bodies and key cus-

tomers. Risk Based Certification adds more

value to the certification process for the cus-

tomer, and will further strengthen DNV’s

position as one of the world’s leading certi-

fication bodies.

New investments have strengthened DNV’s

position as a provider of risk-related services

in the oil, gas and pipeline markets. In order

to improve its ability to serve pipeline opera-

tors, DNV acquired the US-based company

CC Technologies, a leading provider of risk-

related services to aging US pipeline systems,

early in 2005. Other acquisitions include

Primalux, Jardine & Associates and Alpha.

The Board remains committed to financial

independence in order to maintain the

integrity of DNV’s services. In 2004, DNV’s

equity ratio was 66.9 per cent. The operating

profit came to NOK 389 million, to which

the sale of an office building in London con-

tributed considerably, compared with NOK

459 million in 2003. Net profit for 2004

amounted to NOK 148 million, down from

NOK 308 million the year before. The unus-

ually high tax cost in 2004 relate to one time

effects of changes to the Norwegian tax law.

The Board of Directors considers the com-

pany’s financial situation to be satisfactory.

The relentless pressure on prices and profit

margins, however, demonstrates the need

for a continuous focus on effective and effi-

cient operations.

We have celebrated DNV’s 140th anniver-

sary through both external and internal

events. The objective of “safeguarding life,

property, and the environment” is deeply

rooted in the organisation. Not many com-

panies can demonstrate continuous opera-

tions – and an ability to be innovative –

throughout one and a half centuries. Fifty

years ago, in 1954, DNV established a dedi-

cated research department. The new scien-

tific approach to rule development repre-

Board of Directors’ report

Board of Directors’ 
report 2004
Driven by a strong focus on operational safety and efficiency, demands for technical 

and business risk services have risen significantly. As one of the world’s leading providers 

of services for managing risk, DNV has strengthened its position in the main markets 

throughout 2004 by leveraging its core competence: identifying, assessing, and advising 

on how to manage risk. 
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Board of Directors’ report

Mr. Atle Bergshaven was in May 2004 elected as Chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. Wilhelm Wilhelmsen stepped
down after having served 22 years on the Board.



sented a quantum leap for DNV and for ship

classification. From then on, the research

activities have been instrumental in the

development of new technologies as a basis

for DNV services.

The Board of Directors works to ensure that

DNV complies with all relevant principles

for good corporate governance. During

2004, the Board conducted an overall review

of its work with the assistance of an outside

consultant. KPIs were established for the

Board itself, and the Board strengthened

and developed, together with management,

an effective and comprehensive succession

planning system for DNV executives. 

In May 2004, Mr. Atle Bergshaven was el-

ected Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Mr. Wilhelm Wilhelmsen stepped down after

having served 22 years on the Board, the last

ten as Chairman. Ms. C. Maury Devine was

elected Vice Chair. The Council elected Mr.

Axel C. Eitzen as a new member of the

Board.

STRATEGIES AND MARKETS
DNV’s main strategic goal is to become “the

world’s leading classification society and cer-

tification company, and a leading technology

and business-risk consulting firm”. While

striking the right balance between growth

and profitability, quality remains the basis

for our operations. The 2004–2008 Strategy

Plan’s targets for generic and profitable

growth are ambitious. Acquisitions will be

given continuous consideration in order to

achieve future growth.

DNV MARITIME
In the maritime area, DNV’s strategic ambi-

tion is to become the world’s leading classifi-

cation society in terms of quality and profit-

able growth. The joint initiative from the

three leading classification societies, ABS,

DNV and LR, to establish common structur-

al rules for tankers is a significant develop-

ment within the maritime safety regime. By

working with one set of common class rules

as the basis for design approval and new-

building construction, competition between

the classification societies in the future will

be based on service and expertise, not to the

same extent on safety levels. The process of

harmonising the rules is complex and

demanding.

The International Maritime Organisation

(IMO) has started the process of defining

the division of responsibilities between the

IMO and class societies. The IMO may

assume responsibility for formulating goal-

based safety standards at the highest level,

while the class societies will develop the

detailed technical prescriptive rules. The

safety acceptance criteria of the harmonised

tanker rules are in line with what is expected

to be the main approach of the IMO.

DNV is concerned about the increase in

chemical-tanker total losses, and is partici-

pating in a joint working group with the

industry to identify measures to reduce the 

increasing number of accidents on chemical

tankers. The main focus is on operational

procedures and inert gas systems.

Within ship classification, DNV’s share of the

world fleet measured in gross tons is approxi-

mately 16.6 per cent, about the same as in

2003. Of newbuilding tonnage contracted

during 2004, DNV’s share of the world market

was more than 20 per cent measured in gross

tons. This represents 402 ships. A total of

5,083 vessels, representing 103 million gross

tons, were classed by DNV at the year-end 2004.

Ships classed with DNV have the lowest

detention rate, according to the worldwide

Port State Control (PSC) statistics. During

the three-year rolling period from 2001

through 2003, an estimated 90 per cent 

of world ship detentions were carried out

under the four leading PSC regimes: the

Paris MOU , Tokyo MOU, Indian Ocean

MOU and US Coast Guard. Of these, DNV-

classed vessels were found to have the lowest

detention ratio at just 2.8 per cent of ships

inspected. The average of the IACS mem-

bers is 4.5 per cent, while the corresponding

non-IACS detention ratio is 22 per cent.

At the Lloyd’s List Maritime Asia Awards in

November 2004, DNV was awarded the prize

as “The Best Classification Society in Asia”.

Criteria for the award included the compa-

ny’s global network, number of vessels

classed, value-added services, customer satis-

faction, and new ship types entered into at

new yards. The prize was awarded by a panel

of experts who represented all facets of the

Asian shipping industry.

Board of Directors’ report
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DNV CERTIFICATION
Within certification, DNV’s strategic ambi-

tion is to become the preferred provider 

of certification and conformity-assessment

services, founded on a risk-based approach.

The introduction of Risk Based Certification

is an important strategic move and repre-

sents DNV’s exclusive approach to manage-

ment system auditing. Recently, there has

been increased demand for more value-

added services from the accredited system

certification process. Risk Based Certification

introduces elements of risk analysis as input

to the customers in their efforts to improve

operations. Extensive training of auditors

has been carried out during 2004 in order

to deliver consistently with regard also to

risk elements. 

The demand for quality management system

certification has been stable, indicating that

important markets have matured. There is

still considerable growth in the demand for

certification of environmental management

systems. DNV is the world’s leading player in

the field of environmental certification, and

among the top three in quality management

system certification.

Multinational companies with production

facilities in several countries are taking

corporate control of the certification body

selection process for the whole group. They

are moving towards global systems for quali-

ty, environment and safety. This trend is

expected to continue. DNV has established

a global customer management system, and

this will be further developed to meet the

needs of customers.

DNV was the first company to be accredited

by the UN Framework Convention on

Climate Change to validate projects in

which companies in industrialised countries

invest in climate-change efforts in the devel-

oping world, based on the Kyoto Protocol.

In the international magazine Environmental

Finance, DNV has been selected as the world’s

most reliable verifier in the area of climate-

change projects.

There is strong growth in the demand for

corporate social responsibility services. DNV

is well positioned and actively developing

new services defined as sustainability services.

Sustainability certification, or certification 

of non-financial assets, is a growing line of

business. In 2004, we launched the DNV

Verification Protocol for Sustainability

Reporting, and acquired CoreRatings, 

an international rating company.

Board of Directors’ report

In April 2004, the DNV-classed
fleet passed 100 million gross

tons. The vessel that brought DNV
past the 100 million mark was the

container vessel P&O Nedlloyd

Caracas, built at Samsung’s yard
in Korea for Danaos Shipping 

of Greece.



DNV TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
In the area of Technology Services, DNV’s

strategic ambition is to be the preferred

provider of technology services to the oil,

gas, energy and process industries, leverag-

ing its cutting-edge technologies, industry

knowledge and global network. 

International growth for our oil and gas

services is important in order to balance the

large volume of business generated on the

Norwegian continental shelf. In the North

Sea, an increasing share of DNV activities is

focusing on the operational phase of the oil

and gas fields. At the same time, competence

and technologies developed in the North

Sea represent key parts of our international

expansion.

Areas for growth include Brazil, China,

India, Angola, and the Middle East. In addi-

tion, operations were established in Russia

and Libya. National safety regimes relating

to offshore oil and gas exploration are

gradually adopting elements from the safety

regime developed for the North Sea. Risk

analysis and assessments are becoming

widely used. DNV’s safety regime experi-

ence gained in the North Sea has become

very valuable when working in these new

areas.

New developments in offshore Liquefied

Natural Gas (LNG) terminals represent

areas of future growth for DNV. These also

include floating LNG production, contain-

ment and offloading solutions.

Field developments are moving into deeper

waters, requiring new technologies. The

need for technology qualification has led to

increased activity at the DNV offshore labo-

ratory in Singapore, and the establishment

of a new offshore laboratory in Bergen,

Norway. Special focus is given to subsea

umbilical systems, risers and moorings.

Based on the DNV Pipeline Rules, the com-

pany is involved in most of the world’s major

offshore pipeline development projects.  

DNV CONSULTING
Within the field of consulting, DNV’s strate-

gic ambition is to develop a leading business

and technology risk management consulting

firm, providing solutions that integrate busi-

ness risk and technical competence. The

aim is to help customers safely and responsi-

bly improve their business performance.

The operations in 2004 have focused on

Norway, the UK, Germany, the Benelux coun-

tries, and the US. Restructuring in some of

the key markets has been necessary in order

to improve profitability and market focus.

The majority of projects are still generated

within the oil and gas industry. In Alaska,

DNV is assisting the owners of the Trans-

Alaska pipeline to comply with requirements

for the re-approval of their oil spill response

plan, following their planned major changes

in how the pipeline will be operated.

Aviation is an area where we have carried

out several high-profile projects. In

Maastricht in The Netherlands, DNV is 

helping EUROCONTROL (The European

Organisation for the Safety of Air Naviga-

tion) to develop an integrated management

system. Such a system was recognised by

EUROCONTROL to enhance their business

processes whilst at the same it will meet

requirements of the EU’s new European

Single Sky Policy.

In late 2004, DNV conducted a security review

of the Munch Museum in Oslo, Norway. The

security review was initiated following the

armed robbery of two of Munch’s most fam-

ous paintings, “The Scream” and “Madonna”.

Due to the review’s extensive findings, several

other art museums have now asked DNV to

carry out similar security reviews.

ORGANISATION AND HUMAN
RESOURCES
On 31 December 2004, DNV had 6,236 em-

ployees. This includes 5,993 permanent staff

and 243 staff employed on time limited con-

tracts. 84 nationalities are represented on

the staff. The turnover of personnel during

the past 12 months was 5.7 per cent, com-

pared to 6.1 per cent in 2003. The Board

acknowledges the dedicated efforts of all 

the employees in fulfilling DNV’s objective.

Corporate and business-area goals and action

plans to increase gender diversity are in place,

together with measures to track status and

progress. At the end of 2004, 30.6 per cent

of the DNV staff were female, compared to

30.1 per cent at the year-end 2003. A special

Board of Directors’ report
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project is working towards achieving equal

percentages of female managers and female

employees. One priority is to identify

women with leadership potential, particular-

ly within the technical field. In 2005, DNV

will establish an international mentoring

programme for female technical managers,

with senior managers as mentors. 

DNV’s pension schemes have been or are in

the process of being changed in several

countries, including Norway, the UK, Japan,

Germany, Belgium and Greece, moving

from defined benefit to defined contribu-

tion schemes. The transition to a defined

contribution scheme for employees entering

the company from 2005 and onwards will

gradually reduce DNV’s long-term financial

risk. Employees who are covered by the

defined benefit schemes will be offered the

chance to transfer to the defined contribu-

tion scheme where relevant.

By introducing an Ombudsman, DNV

acknowledges the importance of employees

having a trusted route to voice ethical con-

cerns or obtain guidance when faced with

difficult ethical choices. The Ombudsman

reports to the CEO, and has an option to

report directly to the Control Committee

when this is felt relevant. 

SAFETY, HEALTH, AND 
THE ENVIRONMENT
The goals of zero injuries and no occupa-

tional illnesses incurred by our employees,

and no incidental pollution to the environ-

ment, are important focus areas. The level 

of reported lost-time accidents compares

favourably with general industry standards.

The rate of sickness-related absence was 2.2

per cent, compared to 2.6 per cent in 2003.

DNV’s own activities do not have any signifi-

cant negative impact on the environment.

Recycling programmes are in place in most

offices to handle paper and other consum-

ables, and we are striving to reduce our

energy consumption.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
2004 has been a variable year for DNV. In

particular, a generally strong global econo-

my has resulted in a long-term order reserve

for DNV that is better than ever. Due to

high freight rates in the shipping industry

we did, however, experience that many of

our customers postponed non-essential work.

DNV achieved revenues of NOK 5,957 mil-

lion in 2004, NOK 195 million more than 

in 2003. The growth was within DNV Tech-

nology Services and DNV Maritime. DNV

Certification saw a small reduction in busi-

ness volume, as a very high share of its cus-

tomers completed the transition to the new

ISO 9000:2000 standard in 2003, leading to

a reduction in recertification in 2004. DNV

Consulting has in 2004 downsized and re-

structured its operations in some market

segments while we see sound growth in oth-

ers. The incorporation of Q-Labs AB from 

1 May 2004 has added revenue of NOK 93

million. 

The operating profit decreased from NOK

459 million in 2003 to NOK 389 million in

2004, representing an operating margin of

6.5 per cent. The difference in operating

profits between 2003 and 2004 is mainly

explained by an office building in London

which was sold in 2003, producing an oper-

ating gain of NOK 72 million compared to

its book value.  

DNV does business in 70 different curren-

cies and has subsidiaries and branch offices

in close to 100 different countries. The

change in net financial items from NOK -80

million in 2002 to break even in 2003 and

NOK -52 million in 2004 is mainly explained

by the direct and indirect effects of fluctuat-

ing exchange rates. 

The tax cost of NOK 190 million is extra-

ordinarily high in 2004. DNV suffers from

an increasing degree of double taxation,

and the Norwegian tax reform approved by

the parliament in November 2004 turned

out to be very negative for DNV. The de-

ferred tax asset on DNV’s balance sheet had

to be reassessed based on the new legisla-

tion, and has been written down in the 2004

accounts. The net profit after tax in 2004

came to NOK 148 million, compared with

NOK 308 million in 2003 and NOK 140 mil-

lion in 2002. The Board of Directors consid-

ers DNV’s financial performance in 2004 to 

be satisfactory.

Board of Directors’ report
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At year-end, DNV had a sound cash flow, no

interest-bearing debt, bank deposits of NOK

1 billion and unused available credit lines of

NOK 750 million. The balance sheet is strong,

with a total equity of NOK 3,119 million, or

66.9 per cent of DNV’s total assets. 

For the parent company, the DNV Foun-

dation, the accounts show a loss after tax 

of NOK 4.7 million, which has been covered

by Other Equity. The Board of Directors

confirms that the financial statements are

based on the going-concern assumption.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
Exchange-rate fluctuations have a major im-

pact on the revenue measured in NOK, as

75 per cent of the revenues are generated 

in currencies other than Norwegian kroner.

DNV incurs 34 per cent of its costs in

Norway. A rise in the NOK exchange rate

reduces the competitiveness of our resources

in Norway compared with other countries. 

The order reserve is very satisfactory at the

start of 2005, and DNV expects sound growth

in its revenues in 2005, with an operating

profit on about the same level as in 2004. 

Board of Directors’ report
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DNV Maritime

Passing the 100
million grt milestone
The container vessel P&O Nedlloyd Caracas was delivered in 

April 2004 from Korean yard Samsung Heavy Industries to 

Greek shipowner Danaos Shipping. With this delivery DNV

passed 100 million gross tons. 
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Never before has DNV classed such a large

share of the global shipping fleet, with a

total of 16.6 per cent now to DNV class. The

DNV share of the newbuilding tonnage 

contracted during 2004 amounted to 20 per

cent (13.3 million gross tonnes), represent-

ing 402 vessels. A total of 5,083 vessels were

classed by DNV at year-end 2004, which

equals 103 million gross tonnes.

On the last day of 2004, as DNV celebrat-

ed 140 years of operation, the 140th vessel of

2004 was ordered to DNV class in Korea. In

2004 Korean yards rated DNV as the best

class society for the fourth consecutive year,

and the entire shipping industry in Asia

voted DNV the best class society with DNV

receiving the Lloyd’s List Maritime Asia

Award at a ceremony in Hong Kong. The cri-

teria for this award include global network,

number of vessels classed, value of service to

customers, customer satisfaction and new

ships contracted to DNV at new yards. The

global team efforts by the employees of DNV

Maritime represent the key factors behind

the many successes of DNV in 2004.

TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENTS
The most important technical developments

for DNV in 2004 were within the areas of

LNG, cold climate and vessel structures. In

addition, there has been a substantial focus

on the Nautical Production System in order

to further enhance the quality of our servic-

es and shorten our response time for DNV

to remain competitive and cost effective. 

THE EXCITING LNG MARKET 
Over the next five-year period, the global

LNG fleet will increase to a total of more

than 300 vessels compared to the entire fleet

of 177 vessels currently trading (year-end

2004). This is a dramatic increase. While tra-

ditionally the LNG trade has been from the

Gulf of Mexico to Europe, as well as from

DNV Maritime
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South East Asia to Japan and Korea, many of

the new vessels will trade in tougher weather

routes such as from the North Atlantic and

the Barents Sea to the US East Coast and

southern Europe. DNV has always played a

central role in LNG shipping, and was active

in the development of both the spherical

tank and the membrane tank designs. About

20 per cent of all LNG vessels ordered dur-

ing 2004 were to DNV class.

As new trades are evolving, large LNG

carriers will be built with alternative propul-

sion systems such as large diesel engines or

diesel-electric propulsion. The largest LNG

vessels to date (216,000 m3) are thus con-

tracted with slow-speed diesel engines. In

rougher weather conditions, expected in

these emerging trades, sloshing in partially

filled tanks is an issue, but DNV has a long

history of research into sloshing, including

model experiments, and we can assist our

clients with the appropriate solution.

COLD CLIMATE AND ARCTIC SHIPPING
Headquartered in the North and with our

traditional clients trading in these waters,

DNV has over the years gained unique ex-

perience in ship operations in cold climates.

There are about 1,760 ice-strengthened ves-

sels of all types in operation, including 380

tankers to DNV class, making DNV by far

the market leader among class societies on

cold-climate shipping. Furthermore, almost

50 per cent of all tankers currently on order

with ice-class strengthening are to DNV class.

DNV has established a specific research

programme, “Operation in Cold Climate”,

with class services being developed for

strengthening of the hull to face this harsh

environment and requirements for de-icing

of vessels operating in these cold-climate

waters. The programme considers all aspects

of cold-climate operations. The DNV Ice

Class Rules were further developed during

2004 and apply to oil tankers and LNG ves-

sels, the two vessel types most commonly

involved in Arctic trade. 

COMMON STRUCTURAL RULES 
FOR DOUBLE-HULL OIL TANKERS  
The Joint Tanker Project now nearing its

completion is the result of an initiative

taken by the three classification societies

DNV, ABS and LR. The objective is to raise

the level of safety, reliability and durability

and develop common structural rules with

clearly stated goals. Following close to three

years of development, the new common

rules are scheduled for publishing in 2005.

Throughout the development project, inter-

action with the industry, yards, owners and

regulators such as IMO, has been an impor-

tant element to ensure that the final Rules

meet industry expectations.

QUALITY
DNV is continuing to focus strongly on 

quality in all aspects of its service delivery

and in relation to all vessels to DNV class.

One important measure of quality is the

number of vessels detained by Port State

Controls for deficiencies related to class.

Once more, taking the rolling average of

the past three years and on a global basis,

DNV-classed ships achieved the least num-

ber of detentions – an expression of quality

both with respect to the owners classing

with DNV and of the contribution DNV

makes to ensure the quality of its classed

fleet. 

The following statement by Graham

Westgarth, Teekay’s Senior Vice President 

in charge of operations, epitomises the 

common industry view on quality:

“Quality forms the basis of our philoso-

phy and to me, quality is made up of three

parts: First of all, quality is about our service

to our customers in ensuring they receive

their products on time. Secondly, it is about

the physical quality of our assets – the Teekay

vessels and our brand equity. Thirdly, it is

about our customers seeing us as being

innovative and steadily improving our 

performance.”



IT IS DIFFICULT TO PREDICT THE MARKET. 

WE ANTICIPATED GROWTH IN ARCTIC AND LNG SHIPPING 

AND GEARED UP TO MEET THE DEMAND. 
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DNV Certification

Turning risks 
into rewards
Introducing Risk Based CertificationTM is a paradigm 

shift in management system certification.
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Aiming to improve the value of DNV’s certi-

fication services, Risk Based Certification

was launched towards the end of 2004. Re-

presenting a new approach to accredited

management system certification, Risk Based

Certification has been applauded by both

accreditation bodies and key customers, as

well as by DNV’s own staff. 

Although the regular certification require-

ments have been the foundation for this

enhanced method, Risk Based Certification

has been developed from the idea that certi-

fication processes should be tailored to the

unique needs of each customer. 

As part of the preparations for an audit,

companies are asked to describe their most

important business risks. Through discus-

sions a critical few areas are identified, and

the audit is tailored to focus especially on

these. Taking a company beyond compli-

ance to any standard, Risk Based Certifi-

cation is considered vital to assist compa-

nies in identifying key improvement areas.

Through the audits top management

receive better information on the organi-

sation’s ability to meet strategic objectives. 

All auditors were trained during the year

to ensure consistent delivery of the new cer-

tification approach. Risk Based Certification

adds more value to the certification process

for the customer, and is expected to further

strengthen DNV’s position as one of the

leading certification bodies worldwide. 

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM CERTIFICATION
DNV is the world’s leading company in the

field of environmental certification, with a

worldwide market share of about eight per

cent. For quality management system certi-

fication, DNV is among the top three

worldwide, with a market share of about

six per cent. All in all, DNV has issued

more than 50,000 accredited management

system certificates.

DNV Certification
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SPECIFIC INDUSTRIES
DNV’s focus on specific industries has

yielded good results, and the company will

continue to identify and select new priority

industry sectors. The automotive industry

requires its suppliers to certify their quality

management systems according to ISO/TS

16949, and DNV Certification has experi-

enced a positive development towards this

sector in 2004. Addressing food safety

through HACCP and other standards, the

food industry is a growing sector for DNV.

Other defined key sectors are the aero-

space industry and the telecommunications

industry, both with growing results last year.

GLOBAL CUSTOMERS
Multinational companies with production

facilities in several countries are taking cor-

porate control of the certification-body

selection process. This is happening concur-

rently with a move towards the establish-

ment of integrated quality, environment and

safety management systems. Expecting this

trend to continue and to better serve com-

panies with a global approach to manage-

ment system certification, DNV appointed 

a number of global customer managers in

2004. DNV Certification has the organisa-

tion, knowledge and skills to manage global,

multi-standard certification projects. 

Achieving positive results, especially in

the second half of 2004, this global customer

management approach will be further devel-

oped to meet the needs of DNV’s cus-

tomers. 

SUSTAINABILITY SERVICES
Realising that DNV’s greatest influence and

contribution to sustainable development is

through a full Corporate Social Respon-

sibility (CSR) service menu, new services

were included in the portfolio in 2004. 

Expecting a growing demand for CSR

services, DNV acquired CoreRatings in

2004. With the acquisition of CoreRatings,

the leading European rating agency for

extra-financial risk assessment and rating,

DNV recognises the need for companies to

provide more transparent and reliable infor-

mation on their intangible values and mate-

rial risks. CoreRatings takes an investor’s

view of corporate governance and corporate

environmental and social performance.

Satisfying the call for the measurement

of material investment risks, the combined

expertise of DNV and CoreRatings makes 

a full range of corporate responsibility and

corporate governance services available. 

Based on internationally recognised prin-

ciples, DNV has developed its own verifica-

tion protocol for sustainability reporting.

Companies can now have their contribution

to sustainability verified – an emerging busi-

ness that DNV expects to grow significantly. 

DNV is the world-leading certification

body for offshore wind farms, a highly inter-

esting and growing market sector in which

DNV will continue to strengthen its efforts.

CLIMATE CHANGE SERVICES
Being the first company accredited by the

UN Framework Convention on Climate

Change, DNV’s strong position in the inter-

national climate-change arena was con-

firmed in 2004. DNV Certification is accred-

ited to validate projects where companies in

industrialised countries invest in climate-

change efforts in the developing world. 

Towards the end of the year, the UN 

formally registered the first climate-change

project to be generated by the Kyoto Proto-

col; utilising gas from a Brazilian waste

plant, electricity is generated. Paving the

way for an array of other energy projects,

the Brazilian project was validated by DNV,

meaning that DNV assessed the project

design. With Russia’s ratification of the

Kyoto Protocol towards the end of the year,

the market for climate-change services is

expected to increase. DNV is well prepared

to meet this market demand.
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Having developed methodologies to en-

sure credible audits, DNV Certification has

previously been accredited under both the

Californian Climate Action Registry in the

US and the UK Emissions Trading Scheme.

TO EXERCISE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY,

COMPANIES MUST STRIVE TO BALANCE THEIR 

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE.

>>
<<



Pushing technological
boundaries
Combining cutting-edge technology knowledge, and industry

experience, DNV Technology Services is on its way to become 

a preferred provider for the oil, gas, process, and energy industry.

DNV Technology Services
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Moving into yet deeper waters, new tech-

nologies are required by the industry, and

the need for technology qualification has

led to increased activity. The offshore labo-

ratories in Singapore, Oslo, and Bergen

have also experienced increased activity.

New offshore Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG)

terminals also represent areas of growth.  

Having developed the worldwide recog-

nised DNV Pipeline Rules, the DNV Techno-

logy Services is involved in most of the

world’s major offshore pipeline develop-

ment projects. Russian energy major

Gazprom is adopting DNV’s offshore stan-

dard as their corporate standard. To further

strengthen DNV’s ability to serve onshore

pipeline operators, US-based CC Techno-

logies was acquired.

Balancing the large volume of business

generated on the Norwegian continental

shelf, significant growth was ensured in

Brazil, China, India, Angola, and in the

Middle East. In addition the infrastructure

was developed further in Russia and Libya.

Dividing its services into the four cate-

gories of technology qualification, asset

operations, offshore class, and verification,

four projects are here presented as high-

lights of 2004.

TECHNOLOGY QUALIFICATION 
ON ORMEN LANGE
A giant prehistoric landslide created the

uneven seabed above the Ormen Lange

field, with steep slopes and obstacles up to

50 metres tall. Located 120 km off the west

coast, Norway’s first deepwater project with

water depths between 800 and 1,200 metres

will be developed using subsea installations

and 120-km long pipelines. 

Operator Norsk Hydro engaged DNV in

many tasks to identify and mitigate the risks

involved, among them the qualification of

new pipeline technology. The extreme con-

DNV Technology Services
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ditions combined with a long tie-back dis-

tance made technology qualification vital

for the operator. Finding new technological

solutions to get the pipelines up the slide

surface, DNV has developed project-specific

free-span guidelines. 

Taking into account several vibration

modes activated at the same time, laborato-

ry tests were carried out, leading to greater

understanding of the pipeline response and

fatigue resistance. The research proved that

pipelines are more robust than previously

considered. The new free-span guidelines

will be integrated into DNV’s Pipeline Rules

in 2005.

ASSET OPERATIONS ON THE 
BELANAK FIELD
Located in the South China Sea, Conoco-

Phillips’ Belanak field facilities utilise one of

the largest and most complex floating pro-

duction, storage and offloading (FPSO) ves-

sels ever built. Using DNV’s state-of-the-art

risk-based maintenance methodology,

Belanak’s inspection and maintenance con-

cept has been developed. The scope of work

included the FPSO, wellhead platforms and

oil-offloading buoy. 

Developing the maintenance and inspec-

tion programme for the hull, structure and

topside equipment, DNV’s advanced

methodology for risk-based inspection and

reliability-centred maintenance was com-

bined with the ORBIT software. 

Due to the project complexity, different

disciplines were involved: a risk-based

inspection team for pressure systems, a risk-

based inspection team for structure, and 

a reliability-centred maintenance team. 

The DNV project teams started from the

Belanak operating philosophy and SHE pol-

icy, progressively working towards develop-

ing the inspection and maintenance strate-

gies that finally translated into inspection

and maintenance work packs that were up-

loaded into Belanak maintenance manage-

ment system for implementation. 

OFFSHORE CLASSIFICATION OF
PETROBRAS’ P-51 AND P-52
Being the largest semi-submersible offshore

units to operate in Brazil, the Floating

Production Units (FPU) P-51 and P-52 are

considered a milestone in Brazil’s local ship-

building history, due to Petrobras’ require-

ments regarding local content. Designed for

operation at water depths of 1,225 and

1,800 metres, off the coast of Rio, the plat-

forms will produce 180,000 bpd each. The

whole P-51 unit, except for nodes, will be

built in Brazil, while for P-52 the deck box

and modules are being built in Brazil and

the lower hull in Singapore.

DNV in 2002 signed a verification con-

tract for their front-end engineering design.

Petrobras also chose DNV to classify the two

FPUs with the additional class notation

PROD, meaning that DNV also classifies the

production plants. The classification work

involves a design review, carried out at

DNV’s headquarters, as well as fabrication

surveys in four different sites, carried out

from Brazil and Singapore simultaneously.

Meeting customer demands, DNV has

managed to cut the approval time significant-

ly by using state-of-the-art IT and Nauticus in

close cooperation with Keppel FELS in

Singapore and Technip in Rio.

RISK-BASED APPROACHES ARE THE MOST EFFECTIVE AND 

TRANSPARENT WAY TO INCREASE TRUST AND CONFIDENCE IN NEW 

AND AGING FACILITIES.

>>
<<
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VERIFICATION OF THE HOLSTEIN PROJECT
Consisting of fifteen wells tied back to the

truss spar platform, the BP-operated

Holstein field is located in a water depth of

1,400 metres in the Gulf of Mexico. With

production start in December 2004, this 

cutting-edge technology project is designed

to process 110,000 barrels of oil and 150

million standard cubic feet of gas daily.

DNV has been heavily involved all the

way in following up the engineering; con-

cept, detailed engineering, construction,

transportation of the hard tank, wet mat-

ing of the truss and hard tank, towing of

the hull to the field, and installation of the

hull, mooring system, and the suction piles.

Built in Finland, the hard tank is one of

the largest solid objects – 88.7 m wide and

45.5 m in height – ever transported trans-

verse on a heavy-lift vessel. It is also the

largest truss spar hull and mooring system

in the world, and involves the first-ever use

of a spar-supported riser tension system.

DNV has carried out risk analyses regard-

ing blow-out from the risers during produc-

tion, installation and workovers, work relat-

ed to the lifting and installation of the top-

side, and blow-out during drilling opera-

tions. An extensive third-party review of the

documentation and verification analysis was

carried out for the platform’s top-tensioned

production risers and the export oil and gas

steel catenary risers.



DNV Consulting

Responsible solutions
to business challenges 
In 2004, activity increased in areas such as systems and software,

food safety, and aviation, where safe and responsible solutions 

were implemented to address business challenges.
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DNV Consulting provides integrated business-

risk and technical solutions to customers in

its primary market sectors – upstream,

process, transportation and general indus-

tries. The main service areas include enter-

prise risk management, asset risk manage-

ment, safety and environmental risk man-

agement, and systems and software risk

management. In 2004, DNV Consulting

achieved a very high average customer-

satisfaction score: 4.3 out of a possible top

score of 5.

There were some interesting trends in

2004: strategic projects were delivered,

where management decision-making pro-

cesses involving safety, security, environmen-

tal and business risks were enhanced and

influenced, positioning DNV higher on its

customers’ senior management agendas.

The general industry sector performed very

well and penetrated new and exciting mar-

kets for DNV. 

The former DNV Technology Services

unit of the Benelux region joined DNV

Consulting on 1 January 2004. Most of the

activities in this region are within the pro-

cess, transportation and general industry

market sectors, hence strengthening the

DNV Consulting portfolio. 

Areas such as systems and software, food

safety, and aviation experienced growth last

year. When working in such diverse areas,

DNV Consulting delivers different types of

projects. Here are some examples from the

four business sectors.

UPSTREAM
The operator of the Trans-Alaska Pipeline

System, Alyeska, contracted with DNV

Consulting for assistance in analysing their

business management processes.

Under the watchful eyes of regulators

and special interest groups, approximately

one million barrels of oil a day are trans-

DNV Consulting



28

DNV Consulting

ported through the 1,300-kilometer long

pipeline, which crosses the entire State of

Alaska and some of the world’s most sensi-

tive environmental areas.

DNV’s original task was to verify the capa-

bility and effectiveness of Alyeska’s manage-

ment system, ensuring its compliance with

all legal and regulatory requirements. DNV

Consulting was hired to assist Alyeska

improve the overall efficiency and effective-

ness of their business.

Upstream, which delivers solutions to

major oil and gas operators worldwide, is the

largest market sector in DNV Consulting.

PROCESS INDUSTRIES
Nippon Gohsei, a multinational chemical

corporation and Japan’s oldest public chem-

ical company, began operation of its new

chemicals plant in the UK in June 2004.

Nippon Gohsei required a seamless transi-

tion from the commissioning of its new

plant to the operating phase. To achieve

this, the company needed to capture the

knowledge gained during commissioning to

ensure successful operation, operate within

the requirements of its Integrated Pollution

Prevention and Control (IPPC) permit, pro-

mote continual improvement, and achieve

ISO 9001 and 14001 certification. 

DNV Consulting assisted in addressing

these critical issues by developing an inte-

grated business system that increased effec-

tiveness by utilising synergies and common

areas in HSEQ disciplines. This resulted in

reducing costs and inconsistencies whilst

increasing knowledge sharing and commu-

nication across the organisation. The proj-

ect was extended in scope on several occa-

sions as Nippon Gohsei was introduced to

new services.

Within the process industries sector, 

risk management and business improve-

ment services are offered to the refining,

pharmaceuticals, metals and chemicals

industries.

TRANSPORTATION
In 2004, the Schiphol aviation supply chain

contracted DNV Consulting to carry out ver-

ification of its supply-chain process for cal-

culation of the environmental effects. The

aviation supply chain includes the Schiphol

Group (Schiphol Airport), LVNL (Air

Traffic Control The Netherlands), KLM,

and NLR (the Dutch Institute for Aviation

and Space).  

Deliverables from the project gave impor-

tant input to the parliamentary discussions

regarding environmental limits necessary

for the future expansion of air-traffic at

Schiphol Airport.

The UK team continued to work with

EUROCONTROL on a wide range of issues,

while in Norway DNV Consulting entered

into a three-year frame agreement contract

with Avinor to provide safety management

services.  

The transportation industry sector focus-

es mainly on aviation and the continued

efforts to build high-level risk management

and safety management services. The rail

industry also continues to meet risk and

safety challenges, while road construction

and management as well as inter-modal

transportation represent growing areas.

GENERAL INDUSTRIES
Nordea, the largest bank in Scandinavia, is

highly dependent on reliable and available

IT systems. IT systems consolidation and

operations outsourcing are ongoing activities

placing additional requirements on their IT

operations. To ensure the quality of their IT

operations, Nordea asked DNV Consulting to

conduct an independent evaluation of their

IT operations including an IT risk assessment. 

When two of Edvard Munch’s famous art

icons, “The Scream” and “Madonna”, were

stolen from the Munch Museum in Oslo in

August 2004, DNV was asked by the City of

Oslo Art Collections, to perform an analysis

of the museum’s security measures relating
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to fire, burglary and robbery. The DNV

report, and the art robbery itself, made it

clear to the Munch Museum that its security

precautions had been incomplete.  

Throughout Europe, the theft stirred

considerable debate about how to protect

valuable art. The museum will remain

closed until summer 2005 in order to im-

plement the immediate recommendations

listed in the report.

General industries is a grouping of mar-

ket segments including ICT, food and bever-

age, utilities, public sector, space, learning

programmes, finance, media, construction,

property and buildings, and development

assistance. DNV’s broad expertise in risk

management and assessment is proving to

be of increasing interest to these segments.

IF YOU ARE A DIRECTOR OF A COMPANY LISTED ON THE 

LONDON STOCK EXCHANGE … RISK MANAGEMENT

SHOULD BE NEAR THE TOP OF YOUR AGENDA 

Nigel Turnbull

>>
<<



Keeping the computers
humming

Information Technology
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Information technology (IT) is now an inte-

grated part of the modern business world. It

evolves rapidly and is quickly implemented

in businesses around the world. As new tools

and functionality are brought online, the

pace of business increases. Improved busi-

ness efficiency is certainly the goal and

often the result, but the continuous increase

in speed and reliance on technology has

inherent risks. As failure of IT systems can

lead to disruption of critical business

processes, security breaches, and much

more, the ability to manage the risks of

information and communication technology

is crucial. 

DNV has for decades built a foundation

of knowledge and experience within IT

that has come from extensive use of IT-

systems, as well as close co-operation with

customers and partners in multiple IT-

intensive projects. One example of this in-

house competence is DNV’s own software-

development house, DNV Software, which

delivers innovative software solutions for

the marine, offshore and process industries. 

MITIGATING IT RISKS
Over the past few years, DNV has taken one

step further, and developed a range of serv-

ices tailored to help customers identify,

assess and manage IT risks. These services

build on the extensive knowledge of IT in

DNV, as well as specialised competence

from Q-Labs, a software process improve-

ment firm where DNV is the majority owner. 

At the end of 2004 more than 400 people

worked with IT-related services in DNV, and

an additional 100 in Q-Labs. This accounts

for close to eight per cent of DNV’s staff,

illustrating DNV’s depth of IT competence. 

2004 also marked the launch of a DNV

corporate initiative to further develop these

services. The aim is to significantly increase

DNV’s ability to help clients efficiently man-

age their IT risks by combining the compe-

tence found within a number of relevant

fields. 

TECHNOLOGY AT THE CORE
DNV Corporate Technology runs the IT-

systems for the widespread DNV organisa-

tion. Drawing on this experience, and on

cooperation with DNV Consulting and DNV

Research, a comprehensive IT strategy has

been developed. The keywords for this strat-

egy are standardising, sharing, and re-use.

The strategy also encompasses concepts

such as total cost of ownership, IT-service

management, IT-risk management, IT 

security, and IT governance.

Based on the mentioned IT strategy and

hands-on operational experience, Corporate

Technology has developed DNV’s IT plat-

form “VerIT4Net.” This internal product

was packaged and sold to several external

customers in the past year.

DNV’S UNIQUE RISK APPROACH
DNV has specialised in a risk-management

approach for more than a century. It is the

most efficient way of identifying those criti-

cal issues that can do most harm to business-

critical processes, and provides solutions to

assess and manage these risks in the best

possible manner. Obviously, there exists no

method to remove all risks in business, but

DNV can help customers improve their in-

formation and software quality, optimise

complex IT systems, and provide added

security for business-critical processes. 

DNV’s objective was established in a time

far removed from technology and software

systems. However, as technology entwines

itself into every aspect of human endeavour,

including the protection of life, the safe-

guarding of property, and even the preser-

vation of the environment, it is DNV’s ambi-

tion to develop services that match that

development.

Software and IT systems are extensively used to run business critical

processes. This has introduced significant risks, as these complex and

continuously evolving systems can, and sometimes do, break down.

DNV has services aimed at managing these risks. 

Information Technology

DNV’S SERVICES AIMED 

AT MANAGING IT RISKS

Information Quality Management

(IQM)

Data and information resources are

valuable assets. Poor quality and man-

agement of these valuable resources

are a major cost driver and a significant

obstacle for business improvement.

IQM provides services to improve the

management, control and usage of

data and information resources.

Q-Labs (a DNV company)

Q-Labs provides services to assist cus-

tomers in development, acquisition and

application of software and software-

enabled systems. Q-Labs’ consulting

approach covers all aspects of the

process; assessment and needs analysis,

selection of performance and improve-

ment goals, and practical implementa-

tion and project evaluation. 

Managing Risk in Systems 

and Software (MRSS)

DNV Consulting offers a broad range

of managing risk services; IT risk assess-

ment, product and process assessment

and improvement, information security,

and IT service management. The focus

is to assist customers to procure, devel-

op and operate critical IT systems in a

cost-efficient manner with the required

business continuity and reliability.

DNV Validation Authority 

Services (VAS) for eSignatures

These are third-party trust services to

enable effective use of electronic iden-

tification (eID) and eSignature for

securing electronic business processes.

DNV can provide independent valida-

tion of the identity and credentials of

the interacting parties, and of the

integrity of the information exchanged. 



A history of innovation

50 years of research

In connection with the 50th anniversary for DNV´s research

activities, the book “Impact” was published.



Innovation to solve acute problems has a

proven track record of success and is far 

more fertile than the occasional brilliant idea.

Way back in 1954, then CEO of DNV

Professor Georg Vedeler appointed his 

former pupil, Egil Abrahamsen, as the first

head of DNV’s research department. Earlier

the company had simply copied other lead-

ing class societies’ rules, but this was the

start of the modern, forward-looking DNV

we know today. Egil Abrahamsen was CEO

of DNV from 1966 to 1985.

Looking at DNV today, we see a techno-

logy company to be proud of. However, this

did not come about by itself. Tomorrow’s

DNV will be built on the research and 

development projects initiated today. 

PART OF THE BIGGER PICTURE
Egil Abrahamsen emphasises that a compa-

ny can only hope that 5–10 per cent of its

technology development will come from its

own R&D work. “To achieve the remaining

90 per cent, there has to be a dedicated

research department working closely with

the organisation, customers and other

industry players,” he says.

Looking at the impact of the 5–10 per

cent that is developed in-house in DNV, 

it is safe to say this is a sound investment.

Looking back, DNV’s periods of strongest

growth and profitability were associated with

innovation and strategic decisions. For

example, when DNV in the early 1950s

realised it had to develop its own rules for

ship classification based on scientific meth-

ods and in-house expertise, this combined

innovation with insight and dedication. As 

a result, DNV became an international tech-

nology leader in many business areas.

SESAM – BACKBONE OF DNV’S SUCCESS
Acquiring SESAM from the Norwegian

Institute of Technology in 1968 and making

the strategic decision to develop it further

was indeed a matter of innovation. Today

SESAM is recognised as the most com-

prehensive software system for structural

and hydrodynamic analysis available to the

offshore and maritime industries. Having

been subject to continuous improvements, 

it has become a widely used tool and the

basis of a broad spectrum of services for

more than three decades.

NAUTICUS – LARGEST INVESTMENT EVER
Realising the importance of product models,

DNV 15 years ago initiated the research that

resulted in the product model Nauticus. An

entirely new information, communication

and data-tool infrastructure was developed

through the largest single project invest-

ment in DNV’s history. DNV Maritime is now

a world leader in providing high-quality, IT-

based services, and can integrate this infra-

structure directly with those of its customers.

BROAD IMPACT – AND INTERFACE
DNV has a research portfolio of 36 projects

for the European Commission, six of which

it is in charge of coordinating. DNV has

always participated in Joint Industry Projects

and government-initiated R&D activities.

What differentiates DNV from most typical

industry players is its broad interface. DNV

can contribute world-leading expertise with-

in areas ranging from ship design to bio-

technology and management systems.

THE ENGINEERED APPROACH
In many ways, DNV has its own approach to

innovation; characterised by reliance upon

internal knowledge and by developing ideas

“brick by brick” in a structured fashion.

Above all, DNV’s staff is able to combine the

expertise throughout the organisation into 

a single concerted effort. This systematic

approach has proved to have a higher suc-

cess rate than what is typical for most inno-

vation projects.
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Fifty years ago, DNV took a significant and pioneering step by estab-

lishing a dedicated research department. Today, DNV is internationally

recognised for its expertise in a broad range of industries.

50 years of research



Searching for opportunities

World premiere at Mercedes-Benz: an innovative nano-particle

clearcoat offers three times greater scratch resistance and

improved shine. 

50 years of research



Competitive advantage derives from contin-

uously updated knowledge and expertise. It

is vital to have an organisational culture that

is prepared for change and can follow a

path of “dynamic planning”, adopting the

latest available knowledge and adapting to

changed framework conditions. 

Since 1995, DNV Research has regularly

published its Technology Outlook, describ-

ing important trends and predicting the

likely impact of fundamental and pioneer-

ing research. Having helped DNV assess

which developments will be important to its

way of working and in deciding on new serv-

ice lines, these analyses have also helped to

launch entirely new research programmes.

Strategic research into biotechnology and

biorisk management, for example, is a

direct result of this approach.

NEED FOR BETTER SOLUTIONS
It is easy to discover a need for better solu-

tions to existing problems. For example,

there is a real incentive to find better and

safer ways to transport natural gas in com-

pressed or liquefied form. The way we build

our ships today stems from technical solu-

tions developed half a century ago; it must

surely be possible to find better ways?

Similarly, could there be new ways of captur-

ing renewable energy? Could we find better

ways of reducing the risks of pollution and

spread of disease? These are just some ex-

amples that may yield high rewards once

good solutions are found.

The cost of investing in research and

development to foster outstanding ideas is

of little significance when the outcome is a

major success.  

BIOLOGICAL RISK  
DNV’s most important strategic research

projects are related to biological risk, global

transport and the increasing role of short-

sea shipping, the energy solutions for the

future, nanotechnology, corporate social

responsibility, and secure, reliable software.

DNV is developing safety standards that can

be applied to many areas, involving a poten-

tial for health, biological or environmental

risk.

Risks where the major hazard is a biologi-

cal agent are termed biorisks. Some of the

challenges such risks pose are similar to

those encountered in offshore risk assess-

ment – dealing with complex systems that

lack data and involve high levels of uncer-

tainty. 

Computer software is an integral part 

of everyday life. Recognising that software

accounts for a growing share of people’s

exposure to risk, DNV is investing heavily 

in research into this field.

To understand the concept of reputation

risks, DNV is engaged in research in the field

of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).

Nanotechnology has become a common

buzzword, best defined by the size of the

material building blocks. The size range is

typically from 100 nm down to the atomic

level of 0.2 nm. At these scales, materials

change their behaviour – their chemical

reactivity and optical, magnetic or electrical

properties change dramatically. Nanotech-

nologies create new challenges and oppor-

tunities, but they also involve new risks.

DNV will use its expertise and tools relating

to risk management and risk-based manage-

ment to advise on and certify the use of

nanotechnology.

FUTURE ENERGY SOLUTIONS
Achieving sustainable development is the

main driver for developing renewable, envi-

ronmentally friendly energy technology.

The need to ensure future energy supplies

makes this an issue of growing urgency, and

DNV is focusing on specific technologies for

sustainable growth.

Transport is crucial for commercial com-

petitiveness, economic development and

cultural exchange. Industry and the public

in general have a continuing interest in

enhancing mobility, facilitating access,

reducing energy use and emissions, and

making transport more effective and at the

same time safer and more reliable. DNV is

investing heavily in R&D relating to many

aspects of modern integrated transport.

The world is changing at an ever-increas-

ing pace, and these changes are more than

ever being driven by technology. The next

15 years will probably bring about even

greater changes than have been seen over

the past 15 – or even 50 – years.  
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Through strategic R&D DNV aims at discovering tomorrow’s 

opportunities today.

50 years of research



The power of DNV

The DNV people
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PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCE
One of DNV’s major strengths is our profes-

sional competence, and during 2004 we

continued to build on our already strong

base. The average service length in DNV is

at an all-time high, which means that the

experience level in DNV is higher than ever,

and our overall education level maintained

its upward trend.

COMMUNICATION AS A CENTRAL 
MANAGEMENT TOOL
DNV sees the dialogue between line man-

agers and employees as the best way to sys-

tematically enable both employees and man-

agers to clarify expectations and ensure an

understanding of business and personal

goals. Continuing emphasis has, therefore,

been placed on the “Managing Individual

Performance” (MIP) process. This involves

goal setting, coaching throughout the year,

and a year-end review of performance. The

MIP process is used to cascade DNV’s strate-

gy and corporate goals to all levels in the

organisation.

In 2004 this process was strengthened 

by the revitalisation of the mandatory MIP

courses for line managers and the introduc-

tion of an interactive online course for all

employees. Since its introduction in

November 2004, more than 500 employees

have taken the online course, enabling

them to become more actively involved 

in this process.

In addition to the ongoing dialogue be-

tween employees and line managers, em-

ployee surveys are carried out regularly. This

is done to keep a systematic overview of the

psycho-social aspects of working in DNV, as

a basis for making improvements. A combi-

nation of targeted surveys in specific coun-

tries and DNV-wide people satisfaction sur-

veys gives both an overview and the neces-

sary level of detail. 2004 saw no DNV-wide

surveys, but several were carried out on

country level. For instance, DNV Sweden

carried out a survey in close co-operation

with the internationally recognised

Karolinska Institutet.

GEOGRAPHICAL DIVERSITY
The global nature of DNV’s business is

apparent in the composition of the work

force. While rooted in Norway, 66 per cent

of the work force is outside Norway, and the

number of expatriates from outside Norway

is increasing.

There are fewer Norwegian expats than

before. Expatriating employees is an effec-

tive way of sharing knowledge. 11 per cent 

of the expats in DNV are in Norway.

GENDER DIVERSITY
Increasing the number of women in leader-

ship positions is a corporate priority. The

number of women hired increased in 2004;

30.6 per cent of DNV’s employees are

women. However, this percentage is not re-

flected in the percentage of female man-

agers, which is at 12.1 per cent, slightly up

from last year. The number of female partic-

ipants to DNV’s manager development pro-

grammes, though, is increasing. 

Identifying women with leadership poten-

tial and ambitions, particularly within the

technical field, has been made a priority,

and a corporate project addressing this issue

has been initiated. As a part of the project,

planning began in 2004 to establish an

international mentoring programme during

2005, for female technical managers with

senior managers as mentors.

DEVELOPING LEADERS
DNV cooperates with the leading interna-

tional business schools IMD and INSEAD,

contributing a fresh and internationally

recognised approach to leadership. DNV’s

manager development programme, The

Journey, consists of three clearly defined 

levels with different goals – Port 1, 2 and 3.

PORT 1
The first level of The Journey aims to devel-

op new and potential managers, emphasis-

ing the most common management chal-

lenges of DNV. Nearly 800 employees have

completed this training.

DNV is a people business. All the value of DNV’s output is directly

linked to our brain power; the people of DNV.

The DNV people

24%

34%

14%
17%

10%

1%

4,177 employees have a bachelor,

master or doctorate education level.

That is 71 per cent of the staff, a 

figure rising with new recruitments.

DNV recruited 471 new employees 

in 2004. 75 per cent of these have a

bachelor, master or doctorate educa-

tion. This is up 10 per cent from 2003. 

4%

23%

35%

32%

4%

2%

DNV STAFF AROUND 
THE WORLD

> Norway 1,974–34%

> Europe and Middle East 1,425–24%

> Nordic and Baltics 845–14%

> Asia and Oceania 1,004–17%

> Americas 590–10%

> Africa 55–1%

COMPETENCE CHART

> Doctorate 4%

> Master 35%

> Bachelor 32%

> Professional/Tech 2%

> 2-year college 4%

> Basic education 23%



The DNV people
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KNOWLEDGE SHARING THROUGH EXPATRIATION

HOST COUNTRIES’ PERCENTAGE OF EXPAT POPULATION. There are expats in 33 countries. 
Listed here are the top 14 regarding percentage of expat population.
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PORT 1 AND 2 PARTICIPATION 2000–2004

Male
Female

PORT 2 
The second level intends to develop man-

agers for senior leadership positions in

DNV, based on introduction to management

subjects which broaden the general manage-

ment competence and add to the leadership

development. More than 150 managers have

completed Port 2.

PORT 3
Integrated with DNV’s strategy-development

process, Port 3 used a working-group setting

for developing and inspiring the senior

manager group of DNV (the Executive

Board plus 12 senior managers) in their

efforts with strategic issues, strengthening

the role of the Executive Board as DNV’s

top leadership team and driver of change.

Port 3 was introduced in 2004.

Port 1 and Port 2 are DNV’s management training scheme.
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DNV employees are typically well educated, experienced, and committed to DNV in the long term.
Staff turnover in DNV is traditionally low, and in 2004 it was at an historical low of 5.7 per cent.
However, the recruitments are typically young. 35% of new staff are under 30 years of age and
44% are between 30 and 39 years of age. Average age of new staff is 33,5 years.
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MANNING IN AND OUTSIDE NORWAY, 1981–2004

Norway
Total

Outside Norway

STAFF IN AGE GROUPS

Since the late 1980s, DNV has had more staff outside than in Norway. The acquisition of the

Swedish company SAQ in the late 1990s made a major impact on this trend; however, this is now

levelling out, and the ratio is the same in 2004 as it was in 2003 (approximately 34%/66%) 75% 

of the new staff in 2004 were hired to work outside Norway. 
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Managing our own risks

Safety, Health, and the Environment

The aim of the DNV SHE policy is to ensure

that all employees are aware of the risks in-

volved in carrying out their work, and of the

precautions to be taken to mitigate or remove

these risks. 

DNV employees are often exposed to

potentially unsafe working conditions. DNV

has over the years issued a range of policies

and procedures for the safety of its employ-

ees. In 2004, corporate initiatives focused

on emergency preparedness, hazard and

incident reporting and handling, travelling

and driving, and personal safety issues. In

addition, coping with stress is a topic on

which DNV has increased its focus.

In 2004, the five world-leading classifica-

tion societies developed a joint initiative

aimed at making clients provide safe work-

ing conditions for surveyors. Focusing on

the leading principle that clients’ premises

must be safe, the initiative identifies five

hazardous areas: entry into confined

spaces; access to, from and within the work-

space; safe plant and equipment; working

at heights; and transferring between vessels

at sea.

In 2004, 30 SHE courses were available

on the DNV intranet, ranging from asbestos

protection to coping with stress. The cours-

es were taken both individually and in

groups. The focus has been on safe entry to

confined spaces, fall protection awareness

and office safety. 

Hazard and incident reporting has been

improved and systemised, and DNV has estab-

lished a global web-based system for report-

ing accidents, near accidents, occupational

health issues and hazardous conditions. In

2004, 226 such incidents were reported and

followed up. No environmental incidents

were reported. 

Local SHE committees have been estab-

lished in larger offices to support DNV’s

SHE efforts.

DNV’s SHE FRAMEWORK

DNV’s SHE framework aims to provide

a safe and inspiring working environ-

ment in which there is mutual trust

between colleagues, and efforts are

made to improve the safety culture

and encourage the employees’ envi-

ronmental awareness.

Safety, Health, and the Environment 

is the framework for ensuring positive

people in a successful company

through:

> caring for our employees’ physical,

mental and social well-being, 

> ensuring the safety of our employ-

ees and safeguarding our manufac-

turing process and property, and

> establishing environmental aware-

ness in relation to DNV services.

When helping clients manage their risks, DNV’s own employees often

find themselves in high-risk situations.
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Safety, Health, and the Environment

EXTENDED ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTING
This is the first year that DNV has reported

on the environmental impact of both its

operations and services. 

In 2004, environmental research projects

amounted to MNOK 22.5, representing 37

per cent of DNV Research’s total revenue.

When developing knowledge that con-

tributes to sustainable economic, social and

environmental development, special atten-

tion is paid to the secure supply of oil and

gas and to clean, new and renewable energy.

Other relevant topics are climate-change

mitigation, harmful environmental emis-

sions, responsible use of natural resources,

and optimal management of industry assets

and production processes.

During 2004, DNV issued 6,304 ISO

14001 and EMAS certificates; approximately

11 per cent of all the management system

certificates issued by DNV last year. 

The market share of the DNV tanker

fleet is 17 per cent in gross tons and 16 

per cent in number of ships out of the

entire global tanker fleet. Based on Inter-

tanko statistics, the oil spillage from tankers

recorded in 2004 was 3,046 tons, of which

the spillage from DNV-classed ships was 121

tons or four per cent of the total spillage.

This indicates that DNV ships perform 

better than others with respect to oil spills. 

DNV Maritime allocated 5.3 per cent of

its R&D budget to environmental projects 

in 2004, and 7.9 per cent of the total classifi-

cation fees are linked to environment-relat-

ed surveys.

OWN ENERGY CONSUMPTION 
AND EMISSIONS 
Being a service provider, DNV’s operations

have limited environmental impact. How-

ever, a global survey was conducted in 2004

covering five DNV offices with 2,435 em-

ployees – or approximately 40 per cent of

the DNV staff. This survey included energy

consumption and the hazardous waste

(chemicals and oil) from all DNV Petroleum

Services’ laboratories. In addition, it de-

scribed the waste handling at the Høvik

headquarters, outside Oslo. 

The average energy consumption per

person in DNV offices at Høvik, London,

Singapore, Rio and Houston was 15,000

kWh in 2004. 13 per cent of this is renew-

able energy produced by a heat pump at

Høvik. However, when hydropower is in-

cluded, the renewable energy amounted 

to 75 per cent. The corresponding emis-

sions to air are set out in the table below.

To improve the energy use at the head-

quarters in favour of more sustainable energy

solutions, a project has been initiated to de-

velop a conceptual design for viable renew-

able energy technologies. Contributing to

this goal, solar cell panels and ancillary

equipment have been purchased to test the

efficiency of solar energy. 

WASTE HANDLING
DNV Petroleum Services’ laboratories re-

ported 85 tons of hazardous waste in 2004,

of which 97.6 per cent were delivered to

waste-handling facilities approved by the

authorities. The remaining 2.4 per cent

were burned off. 

When upgrading the offices at Høvik, 

80 per cent of the old furniture was found

to be recycled, either re-used internally or

sold to a contractor. Furthermore, all elec-

tronic-equipment waste at Høvik was either

given or sold to others or sent to recycling

companies, and comprehensive waste sepa-

ration has been established. The total waste

in 2004 was 512 tons, corresponding to 280

kg per person. 

* These numbers include all accidents involving time off work.

ENERGY USE

Hydro power
None renewable energy
Renewable energy exclusive hydro
power

62%
25%

13%

SHE PERFORMANCE IN DNV

> LTA – Lost Time Accident Frequency
(number of lost time accidents/
million hours worked)

> SAI – Severity Accident Index 
(number of days off work due to
injury per million hours worked)

> SAR – Sickness absence rate, (sickness
absence/number of hours worked *100)

2002 2003 2004

4.6 3.7 3.0

42.1 65.4 37.6

2.3 2.6 2.2

LTA

SAI

SAR (%)

WASTE FROM DNVPS LABS 

Chemicals, tons/year
Waste of oil, tons/year
Oil burned off to air, tons/year
Other hazardous waste, tons/year

3.76 2.03
42.537

36.65

EMISSIONS TO AIR FROM ENERGY USE

kg CO2/ kg NO2/ kg SO2/

Source person/year person/year person/year

From internal boiler 197 0.15 0.25

From external power plant 1,011 3.73 3.34

Total average emissions 1,208 3.88 3.59



Impact on society

Corporate Social Responsibility



UN GLOBAL COMPACT

DNV continues to support the UN

Global Compact and its ten principles.

In 2004, DNV’s anti-corruption instruc-

tions were revised and several work-

shops and training sessions were held

to follow up the implementation.

DNV has also started to develop a 

rating protocol for fraud and corrup-

tion resistance, which will be finalised

and tested in 2005. This protocol will

be compliant with the principle on

corruption in the UN Global Compact.

DNV is member of the World Business

Council for Sustainable Development

(WBCSD).

43

DNV in 2004 introduced new corporate

instructions for political and cultural risk

assessments to be carried out in connection

with establishing business or opening an

office in new countries. The country assess-

ment considers issues such as:

> health, safety and security

> humanitarian situation

> political situation

> human rights

> corruption/extortion/transparency 

It is important for DNV that presence in a

country can not be perceived as giving sup-

port to oppressive regimes or prevent capac-

ity building for civil society. In line with

DNV’s objective, the company wishes to con-

tribute positively to sustainable development

and develop knowledge and competencies

locally. Particular focus is put on DNV’s

Code of Ethics, DNV’s anti-corruption in-

structions, and DNV’s signatory to the UN

Global Compact.

The instructions are used by senior man-

agement in the business areas, and the CSR

responsible person in DNV is consulted

throughout the process. In 2005, DNV will

gather experience from these types of assess-

ments and further refine the instructions if

necessary. 

ANTI-CORRUPTION  
Corruption is incompatible with DNV’s val-

ues. Corrupt business practices pose a seri-

ous risk to sustainability of business and

society. Involvement in any form of corrup-

tion and bribes as defined in DNV’s anti-cor-

ruption instructions are unacceptable and

prohibited. 

In 2004, DNV Petroleum Services decid-

ed to restructure its bunker quantity services

(BQS) following the prosecution of three

Singapore BQS subcontractors for corrup-

tion. In order to enhance internal control

over the integrity of its bunker surveys, it

has been decided to hire more in-house sur-

veyors in 2005 to reduce the reliance on

subcontractors. The intention is to better

control the professional and ethical conduct 

of surveyors carrying out quantity surveys. 

In addition, regular audits of the BQS serv-

ice by both external bodies and internal

staff will be a cornerstone of the stringent

quality management system.

TRUSTED ROUTE FOR ETHICAL 
CONCERNS 
Situations that involve ethics and values are

often complex. Instructions and codes can

not cover every workplace situation. It is

therefore important that employees have a

trusted route to voice ethical concerns or

get help when faced with difficult ethical

choices. In 2004, DNV introduced an Om-

budsman to give employees this possibility

without any threat of reprisal. Openness and

transparency is encouraged within DNV, but

the Ombudsman can be contacted when

one feels unable to raise an issue through

the normal route of line management. The

Ombudsman may be contacted at any time,

and all enquiries are treated confidentially.

The Ombudsman reports to the CEO and

the Board of Directors.

STAKEHOLDER DIALOGUES 
DNV is actively involved in several national

and international organisations and com-

mittees that focus on sustainable develop-

ment and the role of business in society,

principally:  

> UN Global Compact

> World Business Council for Sustainable

Development (WBCSD)

> KOMpakt

This gives DNV the opportunity to con-

tribute to dialogues on for example corrup-

tion and human rights. It also gives DNV

the chance to engage with stakeholders

such as government and NGOs, and to con-

tinuously learn more about best practice for

companies with a local and global presence.

Through a corporate partnership with

the Red Cross, DNV works to make a differ-

ence in many of the countries where we are

present. These activities are presented on

the following pages.

Ensuring that CSR is an integral part of DNV’s management system 

and business culture, a range of initiatives was carried out in 2004.

Corporate Social Responsibility

< Sven Mollekleiv was appointed DNV’s Ombudsman in 2004.



To the rescue in Banda Aceh

Red Cross partnership

DNV’s PARTNERSHIP WITH THE RED CROSS

As part of DNV’s CSR effort, a partnership has been established with the Red Cross, adding value

to both parties. In a corporate web-based poll DNV employees chose the Red Cross as a partner.

In addition to financial support DNV contributes with in-kind services and expertise. Focusing on

access to clean water, the partnership covers the development of Emergency Response Water

Modules, and a water component of a Red Cross water and sanitation project in Kenya. DNV

experts have contributed to the development of two portable drilling rigs for the effective use 

of groundwater in emergency situations.



In 2004 DNV established a partnership with

the Red Cross, built on the strong similari-

ties between the two organisations.

Geologist and water expert Marte Ness was

soon asked to contribute with her expertise. 

“Working with the Red Cross was very

interesting, and I soon wanted to get even

more involved,” she explains.

Having successfully completed her exam

in December, she became a Red Cross res-

cue worker prepared to leave on a 72 hours’

warning next time a disaster struck. As a

geologist, her job would be to recommend

where to dig or drill for water, as well as

water quality testing.

It took 20 days; on 26 December the

biggest natural catastrophe the world had

ever seen took place as the giant tsunami

spread out from the epicentre of an earth-

quake off Sumatra. 

Early in the New Year Marte Ness, in

agreement with DNV, left Oslo together

with a team of 35 experienced Red Cross

rescue workers to set up and run a field 

hospital in Banda Aceh, Sumatra. The 

hospital could hold 100 patients and had 

its own helipad. 

“I was very busy at the hospital just out-

side the city, so I only went into the city – 

or what used to be a city – a few times. It 

was quite unreal; there was nothing left.

Everything was completely flat,” she says.

ESTABLISHING WATER SUPPLY 
Her job was to physically establish the hospi-

tal’s water-supply pipeline system: coupling

pipes, driving the truck, and making the tap

stations and pumps work. Purified water,

arriving in a large tank lorry every day, was

transferred to the hospital’s water tank for

further distribution from there. 

“My task was to ensure clean water to 

the hospital, and also to handle sanitary

matters such as latrines and waste hand-

ling,” she says.

After taking only a few days to erect, the

hospital could treat all kinds of patients. 

Many had trouble with their lungs after

swallowing dirty seawater. 

“It was impressive. The Red Cross per-

sonnel were so professional, so hard-work-

ing and so nice to be with,” says Marte Ness. 

INDESCRIBABLE FATES 
As the hospital started admitting patients,

all their stories emerged, making a deep

impression on Marte Ness. 

“The whole place was filled with inde-

scribable fates. Everyone were hard hit, 

having lost their loved ones. They all had

stories one wouldn’t think were possible,”

says Marte Ness, who is grateful she could

contribute to the relief work. The five weeks

in Banda Aceh only made her more moti-

vated for further efforts in the future.

Later she has been appointed responsible

for the development of new water projects

on behalf of the Norwegian Red Cross. She

will be spending six months partly at the

Norwegian Red Cross’ headquarters in Oslo,

and partly at different sites in Sumatra.

After last year’s tsunami disaster, DNV’s Marte Ness joined the 

Red Cross rescue team in Banda Aceh as a water expert.

Red Cross partnership

LOCAL RED CROSS INITIATIVES

All DNV offices are encouraged to establish relations with local Red Cross units.

Here are some results from 2004.

> DNV UK: Peace Walk where money was raised for the Red Cross.

> DNV Sweden: Sponsor the World’s Children’s Prize for the Rights of the Child (WCPRC).

> DNV Norway: Employees are actively involved in the local Refugee Guide Project.

> DNV China: starting a community vulnerability project in collaboration with the 

Norwegian Red Cross and the Red Cross Society of China.

DNV’s water expert Marte Ness >

THE MPUMI FUND – HELP AND

RELIEF TO VICTIMS OF AIDS

The fight against HIV/AIDS and the

need for help and relief to those 

affected is a global responsibility. DNV

is present in areas particularly affected

by this pandemic; employees have also

been directly affected.

Following the death of a young mem-

ber of staff, the Mpumi fund was

established by DNV’s office in Durban,

South Africa. The fund helps a small

Hospice in the Valley of a Thousand

Hills, in the heart of the Zulu communi-

ty outside the city of Durban. DNV sup-

port goes to food and basic medicine. 

The fund is supported by voluntary

fundraising activities carried out by

DNV employees in several countries.
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THE COUNCIL

Chairman
Westye Høegh, Oslo

Vice Chairman
Gunvor Ulstein, Ulsteinvik

Honorary member
Erik F. Lorentzen, Oslo

Members appointed by 
Norwegian Shipowners Association
Terje J.K. Andersen, Ålesund
Elisabeth Grieg, Oslo
Herbjørn Hansson, Sandefjord
Trond Harald Klaveness, Oslo
Garup Meidell, Oslo
Anne Jorunn Møkster, Stavanger
Anette S. Olsen, Oslo
Ingar Skaug, Oslo

Member appointed by
Federation of Mutual Marine
Insurance Clubs
Knut Misje, Bergen

Members appointed by 
Norwegian Oil Industry Forum
Arne Austreid, Tananger
Trond Erik Johansen, Tananger
Johan Nic. Vold, Tananger
Per Terje Vold, Stavanger
Erling Øverland, Stavanger

Members appointed by 
Central Association of Marine
Underwriters
Bjørn Eidem, Oslo
Bjørn Hildan, Oslo
Claes Isacson, Arendal
Douglas Jacobsohn, Oslo
Gunnar Rogstad, Oslo
Georg Scheel, Oslo
Trygve Seglem, Haugesund

Members appointed by
Confederation of Norwegian
Business and Industry
Finn Bergesen Jr., Oslo
Jan Erik Korssjøen, Kongsberg
Sverre Skogen, Oslo
Jens Ulltveit-Moe, Oslo

Members Other Shipping
Ole-Jacob Libæk, Oslo
Dan Sten Olsson, Gothenburg

Members appointed by The Council
Jon Fredrik Baksaas, Oslo
Klaus Kjærulff, Denmark
Asbjørn Larsen, Oslo
Tore Torvund, Oslo
Svein Aaser, Oslo

Members appointed by and from
Det Norske Veritas’ employees
Marit Sætre Cruickshanks
Andreas Falck
Trude C. Helgesen
Leif Gulbrandsen
Odd Sund
Per-Arne Waløen

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman
Atle Bergshaven

Vice Chairman
C. Maury Devine

Members
Tom Ruud
John H. Wiik
Bente Rathe
Axel C. Eitzen
Audun Brandsæter

Unni Marsteinstredet Aagedal
Knut Vågnes

THE CONTROL COMMITTEE

Chairman
Asbjørn Larsen

Members
Georg Scheel
Herbjørn Hansson

THE ELECTION COMMITTEE

Chairman
Westye Høegh

Members
Ole-Jacob Libæk
Elisabeth Grieg
Ingar Skaug
Johan Nic. Vold

THE NORDIC COMMITTEE 
FOR SAFETY AT SEA

Chairman
Göran Hammarberg

Vice Chairman
Johannes Tvedte, Høegh Fleet Services AS

Secretary
Wilhelm Magelssen, 
Det Norske Veritas AS

DENMARK
Per Bardenfleth-Hansen, 
Scantec Marine Consult
Carl-Erik Egeberg, Man B & W Diesel A/S
Niels Chr. Engbjerg, Carl Bro A/S
Valdemar Ehlers, DFDS A/S
Mogens Fynbo, 
Dampskibsselskabet Torm A/S
Niels Otto Knudsen, DANYARD Aalborg
A/S
Frede Kristiansen, DFDS A/S
Hans Henrik Petersen, Danmarks
Rederiforening
Vagn Skaarup Christensen, 
DS NORDEN A/S
Preben Terndrup Pedersen, 
Danmarks Tekniske Universitetet
Capt. Claus Thornberg, TESMA
Óli Hans Hammer Olsen, Faroes 
Maritime Authority

FINLAND
Bo-Erik Blomqvist, Kvaerner Masa Yards
Bengt Engblom, Rederi AB Engship
Kaj Eriksson, OY Rettig AB Bore
Björn G. Fagerström, 
Fortum Oil and Gas Oy
Jukka Häkämies, Sjöfartsverket
Kaj Viking Jansson, Viking Line AB
Marcus Lindfors, Lundqvist Rederierna
Esko Mustamäki, Finnlines Group Ship
Management
Leif Nordlund, Alandia-Bolagen
Erik Skogström, Aker Finnyards OY
Petri Varsta, Helsinki University of
Technology

SWEDEN
Bertil Andersson, Laurin Maritime AB
Stig Bystedt (Honorary Member)
Per Croner, Walleniusrederierna AB
Sten Christer Forsberg, Destination
Gotland AB
Johan Fransson, Sjöfartsverket
Sten G. F. Göthberg, The Swedish
Association of Marine Underwriters
Göran Hammarberg
Lars Arne Inberg, OSM Seapartner AB
Roger Karlsson. Marinvest

Örjan Larsson, B & N Nordsjöfrakt AB
Harry Robertsson, Stena Rederi AB
Olle Rutgersson, Chalmers Lindholmen
Peter Stenberg, Brostöm Ship
Management AB
Peter Stålberg, The Swedish Club
Anders Ulfvarson, Chalmers Tekn.
Høgskola

ICELAND
Olafur J. Briem, Icelandic Shipowners’
Association
Pall Hjartarson, Icelandic Maritime
Administration

NORWAY
Leif A. Andersen, Bergesen d.y. ASA
Knut L. Arnesen, Barber Ship
Management
Karl Johan Bakken, Farstad Shipping ASA
Erik Bratvold, Norsk Sjømannsforbund
Kåre Breivik, Statoil ASA
Bjørn Degerud, Det Norske
Maskinistforbund
Torstein Dehn, 
Nordic Maritime Services AS
Tore Forsmo, CEFOR
Lars Gathe, Elkem ASA
Terje Gløersen, Norges Rederiforbund
Hans Richard Hansen, IUM
Shipmanagement AS
Nils Chr. Høy-Petersen, Torvald Klaveness
& Co. AS
Bjørn Haave, Norsk Sjøoffisersforbund
Rolf Kjær, Color Line Marine ASA
Steinar S. Kulen, Kleven Maritime AS
Henrik Lian, Jahre-Wallem AS
Jan D. Lorentz, Odfjell ASA
Torgeir Moan, Inst. For Marine
Konstruksjoner, NTNU
Niels C. Møller, AS Borgestad
Dragos Rauta, Intertanko
Nils Sjökvist, Frontline Management AS
Oscar Spieler, Frontline Management AS
Lars Stärk, Aker Brevik AS
Henry Svendsen, Billabong A/S
Trond Svensen, Wilhelmsen Lines AS
Rune Teisrud, Sjøfartsdirektoratet
Lars Traaseth, Saga Forest Carriers Intl. AS
Johannes Tvedte, Høegh Fleet Services AS
Tore Ulstein, Ulstein Mekaniske Verksted
Holding ASA
Even Ulving, V-Ships Norway AS
Oddvar Aam, Marintek A/S

THE RIG OWNERS’ COMMITTEE

Chairman
Charles Keaton, GlobalSantaFe

Members
Dennis Katzilierakis, Atwood Oceanics Inc.
Joe Glass, CalDive International
Li Jizha, China Oilfield Services Limited
Yang Yexin, China Oilfield Services Limited
Anders Tegelstrøm, Cotemar
John Vecchio, Diamond Offshore 
Drilling Inc.
Ola Often, Fred.Olsen Energy ASA
Gregers Kudsk, Mærsk Contractors
Jim Gormanson, Noble Drilling 
Services Inc.
Frank Tollefsen, Ocean Rig AS
Ketil Lenning, Odfjell Drilling AS
Gustavo Adolfo Villela de Castro,
Petrobras Brasileiro SA
Helge Krafft, PGS Production AS
Eiliv Johannessen, Polycrest
Pierre Ferran, Pride International
Ian Young, Prosafe Offshore Limited
Bob Shetti, Rowan Companies, Inc.
Sergio Polito, Saipem Spa

Gunnar Jensen, Seatankers 
Management Co. Ltd.
Einar Bekkevold, Smedvig Offshore A/S
Tom Kennedy, Stena Drilling
Paul Tranter, Transocean
Siggi Ludwig, Workfox BV
Svein Flogeland, DNV (Secretary)

THE GERMAN COMMITTEE

Chairman
Nikolaus W. Schues, 
Reederei F. Laeisz GmbH

Members
Roland F. Höger, Komrowski
Befrachtungskontor KG
Albert Schumacher, E.R. Schiffahrt GmbH
& Cie. KG
Ian Beveridge, Bernhard Schulte GmbH 
& Co. KG
Bernd Peterson, Hans Peterson & Söhne
GmbH & Co. KG
Christian Fritzen, Peter Döhle 
Schiffahrts-KG
Klaus F. Bunnemann, Hermann
Dauelsberg GmbH
Thomas Rehder, Carsten Rehder
Schiffsmakler und Reederei GmbH & Co.
Peter Harren, Harren & Partner Ship
Management GmbH & Co. KG
Tom Jacob, Ernst Jacob GmbH & Co. KG
Jürgen Wehr, Oskar Wehr KG
Peter Rybarczyk, Reederei “Nord” 
Klaus E. Oldendorff
Jan-Wilhelm Schuchmann, Bugsier-,
Reederei- & Bergungsgesellschaft mbH 
& Co.
Jürgen Kennemann, 
Aker MTW Werft GmbH
Klaus Borgschulte, Blohm+Voss GmbH
Lambert Kruse, Meyer Werft Jos. 
L. Meyer GmbH
Werner Lüken, Lloyd Werft 
Bremerhaven GmbH
Fred Garbe, Flensburger Schiffbau-
Gesellschaft mbH & Co. KG
Frank Jungmann, German Tanker 
Shipping GmbH & Co. KG

THE GREEK COMMITTEE

Chairman
Christos Kanellakis, Alpha Tankers 
& Freighters Int.

Vice Chairmen
Stathes J. Kulukundis, Rethymnis 
& Kulukundis Ltd.
Theodoros Veniamis, Golden Union
Shipping Co. S.A.

Members
Epaminondas G.E. Embiricos, Embiricos
Shipbrokers Ltd.
Genie Adrianopoulos, Tropis 
Shipping Co. Ltd.
John Angelicoussis, Agelef Shipping Co.
(London) Ltd.
John Coustas, Danaos Shipping Co. Ltd.
Spyros M. Polemis, Seacrest 
Shipping Co. Ltd.
George Gratsos, Standard Bulk 
Transport Corp.
Spyros Karnessis, Elka Shipping 
(London) Ltd.
Alexander Kedros, Southern Shipping &
Finance Co. Ltd.
Nikolas S. Lemos, N.S. Lemos & Co. Ltd.
Diamantis Manos, Costamare Shipping
Co. S.A.
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Anastasios Papagiannopoulos, Common
Progress Compania Naviera S.A.
Nicolas A. Pappadakis, A.G. Pappadakis &
Co. Ltd.
Costas M. Phostiropoulos, Fairsky
Shipping & Trading S.A.
Nikolas P. Tsakos, Tsakos Shipping 
& Trading S.A.
Adamantios Lemos, Ceres Hellenic
Shipping Enterpr. Ltd.
Nicos I. Manias, Arcadia Shipmanagement
Co. Ltd.
Pericles S. Panagopulos, 
Attica Enterprises S.A.
Michael Nicholas Papaioannou, 
Helikon Shipping Enterprises
Anthony Paul Palios, Victoria Steamship
Co. Ltd.
Dimitri Dragazis, John Latsis (London) Ltd.
Ulysses Perantzakis, Naftomar Shipping 
& Trading Co.
Constantinos J. Martinos, Thenamaris
(Shipsmanagement) Inc.
Peter R. Goodfellow, Stelmar Tankers
Management Ltd.
Ghassan R. Ghandour, Gulf Marine
Management S.A.
Victor Restis, Enterprises Shipping &
Trading S.A.
Vassilis Laliotis, Seaworld Management 
& Trading Inc.
Melina Travlos, Neptune Lines Shipping 
& Management Enterprises S.A.
Ioannis Kourmatzis, DNV (Secretary)

THE INDIAN COMMITTEE

Chairman
K.M. Sheth, The Great Eastern Shipping
Co Ltd

Members
R. Tolani, Tolani Bulk Carriers Ltd
S.S. Rangnekar, The Shipping Corporation
of India Ltd
S. Mehta, Essar Shipping Ltd
Ashok V. Chowgule, Chowgule and
Company Ltd
A. Mehta, Varun Shipping Company Ltd
H.K. Mittal, Mercator Lines Ltd
M.K. Murthy, Cochin Shipyard Limited
R.L. Pai, Reliance Petrochemicals Ltd
Rishi Agarwal, ABG Shipyard Ltd
A. Qadir, West Asia Maritime Ltd
Vilas Salukhe, 
Barber Ship Management (I) Pvt Ltd
G.S. Sahni, Directorate General of
Shipping
D.T. Joseph, Ministry of Shipping,
Government of India

THE IRANIAN COMMITTEE

Chairman
Afkhami, Islamic Republic of Iran 
Shipping Lines

Members
Saifollahi, Bonyad Shipping
Golparvar, Iran-o-Hind
Hamid Keshavarzi, IRISL Marine
Engineering Services
Moghadamifard, Islamic Republic of Iran
Shipping Lines
Mohammad Hamid Kamal, Khazar
Shipping
Mohammad Souri, National 
Iranian Tanker Co.
Jamal Mayahi, National Iranian Tanker Co.
Donyamali, Ports & Shipping Organization
of Iran
Estiri, Ports & Shipping Organization 
of Iran
S.N. Momeni, Ports & Shipping
Organization of Iran
Ghaderi, Ports & Shipping Organization 
of Iran

Nayeri, Tavous Beheshti-e Kish
Khobreh, SADRA
Golnejad, SADRA
Karbalai, ISOICO
Hossein Ashjaie, Valfajr

THE KOREAN COMMITTEE

Chairman
Jang, Hak Se, Korea Line Corporation

Vice Chairman
Jang, Won Gab, STX Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.

Honorary Chairman
Wang, Sang Eun, Pan Continental
Shipping Co., Ltd.

Members
Choi, Kil Seon, Hyundai Mipo Dockyard
Co., Ltd.
Kim, Jing Wan, Samsung Heavy Industries
Co., Ltd.
Hwang, Sung Hyuk, Hwang & Company
Noh, Jeong Ik, Hyundai Merchant Marine
Co., Ltd.
Yu, Kwan Hong, Hyundai Heavy Industries
Co., Ltd.
Kim, Jung Hoon, Hanjin Heavy Industries
& Construction Co., Ltd.
Lee, Youn Jae, Hyundai Samho Heavy
Industries Co., Ltd.
Jung, Sung Leep, Daewoo Shipbuilding 
& Marine Engineering Co., Ltd.
Chiang, Jin Won, Pan Ocean Shipping
Co., Ltd.
Carl-Johan Hagman, EUKOR Car 
Carriers Inc.
Vacant, SK Shipping Co., Ltd.

THE NORTH AMERICAN
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Graham Westgarth, Teekay Shipping
(Canada) Ltd.

Vice Chairman
Harri Kulovaara, Royal Caribbean
International

Members
Mel J. Dennett, Admanthos Shipping
Agency, Inc.
Jordan Truchan, American Ship
Management
Steven Ho, Fairmont Shipping (Canada)
Ltd.
Fred G. Hansen, Fednav Limited
John P. Tavlarios, General Maritime
Corporation
William O. Gray, Gray Maritime
Per Heidenreich, Heidenreich Marine Inc.
Tom Ward, International Marine
Consultants Ltd.
Paul D. Sclavounos, Massachusetts
Institute of Technology
Colin Veitch, Norwegian Cruise Line
Craig Stevenson, Jr., OMI Corporation
John C. A. Koo, Orient Steamship
(Canada) Company, Limited
George Jennings, PLM TEC
Peter Curtis, Seaspan Ship Management
Thomas H. Gilmour, Rear Admiral,
Headquarters, Commandant (G-M)
Michael Wilson, Laurin Maritime
(America) Inc.
Stephen Carmel, Maersk Line, Limited

THE SOUTH AMERICAN
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Erling S. Lorentzen, Lorentzen
Empreendimentos S/A, Rio de Janeiro

Members
Eliezer Batista da Silva, Council for Federal
Government Initiatives in 
Rio de Janeiro State, Rio de Janeiro

Sven Von Appen, Ultramar Ltda, Santiago
Haakon Lorentzen, Lorentzen
Empreendimentos S/A, Rio de Janeiro
Ozíres Silva, Pele Nova Biotecnologia S/A,
São Paulo
Tay Kim Hock, Fels Setal S/A
Ariovaldo Rocha, Sinaval
Reinaldo Conrad, Jaako Poyry Engenharia
Ltda, São Paulo
João Carlos França de Luca, Repsol YPF,
Rio de Janeiro
Carlos Alberto Carpanelli, Antares
Naviera, Buenos Aires
Juan Carlos Lopez Mena, BUQUEBUS
Bruno Bastos Lima Rocha, NORSUL,
Rio de Janeiro
Celso Luiz S.P. Souza, Petrobrás, 
Rio de Janeiro

THE SOUTH EAST ASIAN
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Chiau Beng Choo, Keppel Offshore 
& Marine Ltd, Singapore

Members
Robertus Sumantri, Altus Shipping and
Logistics Pte Ltd, Singapore
Peter Chew, IMC PAA Pte Ltd, Singapore
Joseph Kwok, American Eagle Tankers
Ltd, Singapore
Hugh Hung, Tanker Pacific Management
(S) Pte Ltd, Singapore
Trevor Smith, World Wide Shipping
Managers Pte Ltd, Singapore
Kong Leong Teh, Neptune Orient Lines
Limited, Singapore
J.B. Rae-Smith, Swire Pacific Offshore Ltd,
Singapore
Ragnar Nielsen, Masterbulk Pte Ltd,
Singapore
Nik Mohd Zain, Nepline Berhad, Malaysia
Ahmad Sufian (Dato), Essem Holdings (M)
Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia
Azhar bin Abbas Shamsul (Dato), Malaysia
International Shipping Corporation,
Malaysia
Nils-Goran Nordh, Star Cruises Sdn Bhd,
Malaysia
Budhi Halim (Pak), PT Indo Mega Maritim,
Indonesia
Hasyim Ibrahim (Pak), Pertamina, Shipping
– Downstream Directorate, Indonesia
Sumate Tanthuwanit, Regional Container
Lines Public Co Ltd, Thailand

THE PIPELINE COMMITTEE

Chairman
Ed Vermeulen, Consultant

Members
Marit Engedal Andreassen, Statoil
Bjorn Kvaal Hjermann, Norsk Hydro
Jens Erik Thygessen, DONG
Michael Crawford, BP
Alla V. Vasilieva, GAZPROM
Vladimir Gonchar, GAZPROM
Boris Feygin, Petergaz
David Scott, BG Group
Paul Wiet, TotalFinaElf
Tim Crome, Technip
Ken Nilsson, Subsea7
Massimo Pulici, Saipem
Sil Draaisma, Allseas Engineering bv
Peter Tait, Corus
Dr Hans Georg Hillenbrandt, Europipe
Dr Andreas Liessem, Europipe
Frederico Tintori, Tenaris
Ulrike Zeislmar, VM Tubes
Takahura Sasaki, JFE Steel
Dr Anthony Wickham, Penspen/APA
Colin McKinnon, JP Kenny
Per Richard Nystrom, ABB
Tim Ingram, HSE
Kjell L Nillson, NPD

Dines Haslund, DNV
Leif Collberg, DNV
Tommy Bjornsen, DNV (Secretary)

THE HIGH SPEED LIGHT CRAFT 
& FAST FERRY COMMITTEE

Chairman
Håkan Enlund, Aker Finnyards Oy, Finland

Ex-officio Member
Olav Nortun, DNV Høvik, Norway

AUSTRALIA, N.Z. & OCEANIA
Robert Clifford, INCAT Australia, Australia
John Szeto, AMD Marine Consulting,
Australia/China
Michael Grainger, Liferaft Systems
Australia
Ian Graham, Interisland Line/TOLL
Shipping, Australia

CHINA, JAPAN & KOREA
Taketsune Matsumura, Mitsui Eng. 
& Shipbuilding Co. Ltd., Japan
David Wong, First Ferry, Hong Kong
Young Ryeol Joo, Samsung Heavy Ind. Co.
Ktd., Korea

SOUTH EAST ASIA
Ramon G. Villordon, Supercat Fast Ferry
Corporation, Philippines

SOUTH EUROPE
Vincenzo Farinetti, Fincantieri, Italy
Alexander P. Panagopulos, Superfast
Ferries S.A., Greece
Antonio Perez de Lucas, IZAR, Spain
Oner Cem Oktay, Istanbul Deniz
Otobusleri, Turkey

CENTRAL EUROPE
John Geldard, Sea Containers Services
Ltd., UK
Mike Simpson, Hart, Fenton & Company
Ltd., UK
Simon L. Pollard, P&O Ferries Limited, UK
Christoph Krackhardt, MAN B&W Diesel
Ltd., UK
Wolfgang Bühr, Flensburger Schiffbau,
Germany
Wilco van der Linden, Wärtsilä Propulsion
Netherlands B.V., The Netherlands

NORDIC & BALTIC
Rolf Kjær, Color Line Marine AS, Norway
Harry Robertsson, Stena Rederi AB,
Sweden
Kjartan Stensønes, Fjellstrand, Norway
Håkan Enlund, Aker Finnyards Oy, Finland
Stefan Gordin, HI-FOG, Finland

AMERICA & CANADA
C. Mitchell McLean, Bay Ferries Ltd.,
Canada
Trafford Taylor, Manta Nautical Corp.,
Canada

SOUTH AMERICA
Clas Henriksson, Gunnar Henriksson 
& CIA S.A., Argentina

Observer
Len Roueche, INTERFERRY, Canada

Secretary
Karl Morten Wiklund, DNV Høvik, Norway
Hilde Smedal Thunes, DNV Høvik, Norway

THE NAVAL SURFACE CRAFT
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

Chairman
Jan Henrik Eriksen, DNV Norway

Vice Chairman
Marnix Krikke, Royal Netherlands Navy

Members
Roger Mathisen, Norwegian Defence
Material Agency
Rodrigues Rentróia, Portuguese Navy

Council, Board of Directors, Committees
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Committees

John Sjögren, Royal Swedish Navy
Ching Eng Tan, Singapore Technologies
Marine
Wolfgang Schmidt, Blohm+Voss, Germany
Nick Pattison, Vosper Thornycroft, UK
Nere Skomedal, UMOE Mandal, Norway
Jean-Paul Marcel, The Belgian Navy
John Hackett, Northrop Grumman Ship
Systems, USA
Marc Vicaire, Direction des Constructions
Navales, France
George Filmalter, South African Navy
Yannick Anne, DGA/SPN, France
Peter Majumdar, ONR, United States
Lee Kok Leong, Republic of Singapore
Navy
Klaus Sørensen, NMC, Denmark
Enrico Bonetti, Fincantieri, Italy
Emídio Veloso, Arsenal do Alfeite, Portugal
Luis Luengo, IZAR, Spain
John Nilsson, Kockums AB, Sweden
Karl Morten Wiklund, DNV Norway
Øivin Lorentzen, DNV Norway

Secretary
Finn-Erik Dahl, DNV Norway

THE CYPRUS TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Chairman
R. Thompson, Unicom Management
Services (Cyprus) Ltd.

Vice Chairmen
Capt. J. Lissow, Interorient Navigation Co.
Ltd.
Capt. L. Carrel, V. Ships Limited

Members
Capt. A. Cohen, Antares Shipping Co. Ltd.
E. Bucknall, Columbia 
Shipmanagement Ltd.
N. Cleave, Dobson Fleet Management Ltd.
T. Ryan, Dobson Fleet Management Ltd.
H. Pittelkau, Hanseatic Shipping Co. Ltd.
J. Williamson, Hanseatic Shipping Co. Ltd.
A. Brown, Interorient Navigation Co. Ltd.
Capt. E. Adami, Intership 
Navigation Co. Ltd.
Z. Siokouros, Louis Ship Management Ltd.
Capt. J. Josephides, Marlow Navigation
Co. Ltd.
Capt. E. Koch, Oesterreichischer Lloyd
Ship Management (Cyprus) Ltd.
M. Callender, Reederei “Nord” Klaus E.
Oldendorff Ltd.
P. Hoffmann, SMT Shipmanagement &
Transport Ltd.

E. Derlagen, SMT Shipmanagement 
& Transport Ltd.
O. Kalinin, Unicom Management Services
(Cyprus) Ltd.
Nikolaos Boussounis, DNV
Mark Pearson, DNV (Secretary)

THE GREEK TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Stavros Hatzigrigoris, 
Kristen Navigation Inc.

Vice Chairman
C. Tseretopoulos, Thenamaris Ships
Management Inc.

Members
A. Kamarinakis, Merchant Ships
Inspection General Directorate
N. Maroulis, Alpha Tankers & 
Freighters Int.
A. Xanthinakis, Arcadia Shipmanagement
Co. Ltd.
A. Valmas, Enesel S.A.
Stamatis Bourboulis, Ceres Hellenic
Shipping Enterprises Ltd.
D. Kourouklis, Chandris (Hellas) Ltd.
A. Lowry, Consolidated Marine
Management Inc.
H. Prokopakis, Danaos Shipping Co.Ltd.
S. Tsonakis, Eastern Mediterranean
Maritime Limited
G. Sarris, Enterprises Shipping & 
Trading S.A.
A. Vlassakis, European Navigation Inc.
P. Perakis, Fairsky Shipping & Trading S.A.
I. Andreadis, General Maritime
Management (Hellas) Ltd.
C. Andreadis, Golden Union 
Shipping Co.S.A.
S. Kotronis, Gulf Marine Management SA
H. Vlachodimitris, Halkidon Shipping
Corp.
S. Triantafyllidis, Katsikis & Sigalas Ltd.
S. Klimis, Kyklades Maritime Corporation
C. Lympritis, Laskaridis Shipping Co. Ltd.
E. Spathis, Mare International Ltd
T. Eleftheriou, Marine Management
Services M.O.
S. Daniolos, Minerva Marine Inc.
E. Sakellaridis, Neptune Shipping 
Agencies S.A.
A. Spyrantis, Sun Enterprises Ltd
J. Skoutas, Superfast Ferries S.A.
P. Lambrinakos, Tsakos Shipping & 
Trading S.A.

Ch. Giantzikis, Tsakos Shipping 
& Trading S.A.
Nikolaos Boussounis, DNV (Secretary)

THE JAPANESE TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Prof. Dr. Tetsuya Yao, Osaka University

Members
Prof. Dr. Toichi Fukasawa, Kanazawa
Institute of Technology
Dr. Osamu Niho, Mitsui Engineering &
Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
Hideaki Naoi, Kawasaki Shipbuilding
Corporation
Katsumi Kawaichi, Mitsubishi Heavy
Industries, Ltd., Nagasaki Shipyard &
Machinery Works
Yasunori Kohatake, Tsuneishi Corporation
Shiro Imai, Nippon Steel Corporation
Yoshiaki Suzuki, Kobe Steel, Ltd.
Yoshiyuki Nakajima, IHI Marine United Inc.
Saburo Kawachi, Sumitomo Heavy
Industries Marine & Engineering Co. Ltd.
Satoshi Yamamoto, Universal Shipbuilding
Corporation
Prof. Dr. Masahiro Toyosada, 
Kyushu University
Shigehiro Mori, Oshima Shipbuilding
Corporation
Takeshi Kamada, Shin-Kurushima
Dockyard Co., Ltd.
Yoshitka Maeno, Sanoyas Hishino 
Meisho Corporation

THE JAPANESE OWNERS’
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

Chairman
Makoto Taniguchi, M.O. Ship Tech Inc.,
Tokyo

Members
Tsukasa Nishikawa, Mitsui O.S.K. Lines,
Tokyo
Kenji Yokota, Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Tokyo
Norio Tsutsumi, Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha,
Ltd., Tokyo
Kuninobu Kato, Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha,
Ltd., Tokyo
Kouichi Inoue, Nippon Yusen Kaisha,
Tokyo
Tomoyuki Matsubara, Nippon Yusen
Kaisha, Tokyo

THE KOREAN TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Members – Yards
S.H. Shin, STX Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
M.S. Koh, STX Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
Y.M. Lee, Daewoo Shipbuilding Marine
Engineering Co., Ltd
D.Y. Lee, Daewoo Shipbuilding Marine
Engineering Co., Ltd (Seoul)
Y.W. Chung, Hanjin Heavy Ind. Co., Ltd.
T.H. Park, Hanjin Heavy Ind. Co., Ltd.
C.H. Lee, Hyundai Heavy Ind. Co.
G.J. Ha, Hyundai Heavy Ind. Co.
J.M. Shim, Hyundai Mipo 
Dockyard Co., Ltd.
M.K. Park, Hyundai Mipo 
Dockyard Co., Ltd.
H.K. Kim, Samsung Heavy Ind. Co., Ltd.
Y.J. Kim, Samsung Heavy Ind. Co., Ltd.
H.S. Shim, Samho Heavy Ind. Co.
S.C. Moon, Samho Heavy Ind. Co.

Members – DNV
S. Svarstad
S. Kildahl

THE POLISH TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

Chairman
Leszek Trachimowicz, PZM Polish
Steamship

Honorary member
Prof. Jerzy Doerffer, Forum Okretowe

Members
Prof. Tadeusz Jastrzebski, Tech. University
of Szczecin
Wlodzimierz Miadowicz, Polish Baltic
Shipping
Zbigniew Karpinski, CTO Ship Design and
Research Centre
Tadeusz Zwierzynski, Szczecin New
Shipyard
Bogdan Szreder, Euroafrica Shipping Lines
Co. Ltd.
Jerzy Orzechowski, Unity Line Ltd.
Jacek Manczak, H. Cegielski-Poznan
Jan Paszkowski, Remontowa Shiprepair
Yard
Krzysztof Rosochowicz, Tech. 
University of Gdansk
Jerzy Wróbel, Gdynia Shipyard

Permanent members from DNV
Olav Nortun
John Lyng

ARGENTINA

Chair
Eduardo Grassetti

Members
Hugo Untersander, AACAM
Rómulo Estevarena, CPIN
Carlos Ríos, CRios Y Asoc.
Ricardo Espinosa, ADECUA
Edgardo Devoto, DNV
Julio Martinoli, DNV (Secretary)

AUSTRALIA

Chair
Jahn Henry Løvaas, DNV

Members
Chris Winder, University of NSW
Ken Holmes, KMH Consultants
Dietrich Schulz, Aymroad Pty Ltd
Mal Beavis, Vesbia Management
Barry Lee, Tyco Industries
Bill Birch, NZ Chemical Industry Council

Yngve Amundsen, DNV
Ian Morton, DNV

AUSTRIA

Chair
Dipl.Ing. Wozak, Maschinenbau

Members
Dipl. Ing. Hampejs
Dir. Wandl, Römerquelle GmbH
Dipl.Ing. Mario Rohracher, Eybl
International AG
Dr. O. Seycek, OFI
Mag. Harrand

BELGIUM/THE NETHERLANDS/
LUXEMBURG (BENELUX)

CERTIFICATION COMMITTEE FOR AQSC

Chair
Paul van den Heuvel, Heerema
Zwijndrecht B.V.

Members
Jo M.F. Box, AXUM B.V.
Gertjan M. Koudijs, Stork PWV B.V.
Gerrit Langelaar, Ministerie van V en W
Directoraat
Aljan J.W. Postma, Sasol Servo BV
Pierre H.J.H. Spee, Sappi Netherlands B.V.
Geert Vansteenkiste, BEQI-consult
Richard C. Stolk, DNV
Erie D.P. Koek, DNV
Bertus Kroondijk, DNV (Secretary)

BRAZIL

Chair
Luiz Antônio Abbdalla de Moura

Vice Chair
Maria Antonietta Cervetto

Members
Benedito Carlos Gazzaneo
Marcelo Theoto Rocha
Luiz Vieira Rocha
Mauricio Venturin, DNV (Secretary)

CHINA

Chair
Jahn Henry Løvaas, DNV

Members
Zhao, Hong
Chen, Shang Qin
Ma, Aimin
Chen, Ying
Zhang, Chen Fu
Zhou, Ke
Yang, Mian Mian
Wang, Hui Sen
Li, De Ming
Qiao, Xiang Hong

DENMARK

Chair
Jens Peter Høiseth, DNV

Members
Ole Rudkilde, Grundfos A/S
Torkil Vase, Danfoss A/S

ADVISORY BOARDS OF THE DNV CERTIFICATION UNITS HOLDING ACCREDITATIONS FROM NATIONAL ACCREDITATION BODIES
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Gert Andersen, Nordjyllands Amt
Christian Overgård, Optiroc
Arne Remmen, Aalborg Universitet

CERTIFICATION ADVISORY BOARD
FOR TYPE APPROVALS OF WIND
TURBINES (PRODUCT CERTIFICATION
EN 45011/IEC GUIDE 65
ACCREDITATION BY RVA)

Chair
Strange Skriver, Danish Wind Turbine
Owners’ Association

Members
J.L. ‘t Hooft, Novem
Jørgen Lemming, Risø National Laboratory
Uffe Jørgensen, Elsam Engineering
Henk Kouwenhoven, NUON
Per Hessellund/John T. Olesen, Vestas
Wind Systems A/S
Frank A. Olsen, DONG
Truels Kjær, Codan Forsikring
Ole Kjær, Siemens Wind Power A/S
Henning Lütze, GE Wind Energy GmbH

DNV GLOBAL WIND ENERGY
COMMITTEE

Chair
Huub den Rooijen, Shell Wind Energy BV

Vice Chair
Uffe K. Jørgensen, Elsam Engineering A/S

Members
Frank A. Olsen, DONG
Georg Barton, E.ON Energy Projects,
Germany
Martina Kuhlmann, Enercon
Henrik Noppenau, Energi E2
Henning Lütze, GE Wind Energy GmbH
Peter C. Duprey, GE Power Systems
Ángeles Santamaria Martin, Iberdrola
Energias Renovables SA
Tom Sexton, Marsh
Graham Bocking, Nordex Energy GmbH
Finn Gunnar Nielsen, Hydro Oil and
Energy
Thorsten Fastenau, Plambeck Neue
Energien AG
Steve Ackon, E.ON Energy UK
Uwe Hinz, Repower System AB
Peter Hjuler Jensen, Risø National
Laboratory
Bogislaw von Langenn-Steinkeller, Vereins-
und-Westbank AG
Henrik O. Madsen, DNV
Jan Behrendt Ibsø, DNV (Secretary)

FINLAND

Chair
Anders Lindgren, DNV

Members
Markku Nieminen, Okmetic Oyj
Paavo Jerkku, Metso Paper Oy
Hannu Nilsen, UPM Kymmene Oyj
Sakari Toivonen, UPM Kymmene Oyj
Ilkka Tirkkonen, Kiitolinja Oy
Risto Saari, TTS Yrityspalvelu
Kimmo Haarala, DNV (Secretary)

FRANCE

Chair
Jacques Mangon, RHF

Members
Alain Loppinet, Ex-Total
Maria le Meliner, Boepflug & Associés
Raymond Nyers, RNC Conseil
Serge Roux, Mazars & Guérard
Alain Chassagne, Alstom Power
Pierre Bescond, Prospace
Jean-Louis Chemin, Partenaire
Environnement
Josiane Creuzet, Agence de l’Eau
François du Fou de Kerdaniel, STIIC
Philippe Julie, Cartonneries Mondi

José-Antoine Estevez, Bosch Rexroth DSI
SAS
Lydie Ravelau-Richet, FM Logistic
Eric Salaün, DNV

GERMANY

Chair
Dr. Peter Fratz

Members
Günther Stolzenberg, Europipe GmbH
Samuels, Thyssen Stahlunion GmbH
Norbert Manderla
Michael Marggraf, Shell Deutschland Oil
GmbH
Ariane Iffland, Mannesmannröhren
Mülheim GmbH
Dirk Kremkow, Renk AG

HONG KONG

Chair
Wilson Tsui

Members
Chau, Gavin
Lau, Kam Ming Chris
Lau, Karoline
Lau, Thomas
Lee, Franko
Wan, T.S.

INDIA

Chair
Ashok Balwani, DNV

Members
Jayanta Kumar Nanda, Larsen & Toubro
Limited, Mumbai
Ratan Kumar Shah, Hindalco Industries
Limited, U.P.
Subhash Nagindas Shah, ABB Limited,
Maneja
Brij Mohan Kataria, GKN Sinter Metals
Limited, Pune
Rajiv Khurana, Reckitt & Benckiser
Limited, Gurgaon
Rabindra Mukhopadhyay, HASETRI,
Rajasthan
Rashid Kadimi, Allanasons Ltd., Processed
Foods Group, Mumbai
Iyer Balasubramaniam Veera Raghavan,
Perfumatics Chemicals Exports Pvt. Ltd.,
Mumbai
Bidyut Kumar Datta, Bharat Petroleum
Corporation Limited, Mumbai
Prakash Kaoray, DNV
Neelkanta Krishna Kumar, DNV (Secretary)

ITALY

Chair AQSC Certification Committee
Giovanni Florio, FS Istituto Sperimentale

Honorary Chair AQSC Certification
Committee
Alfredo De Vito

Members
Roberto Ruggeri, ABB
Luisa Bajetta, ABI
Francesco Benedetti, AGI
Livio Antonelli, AIDIC
Giuseppe Nardoni, AIPnD
Gianpaolo Albertini, Albertini S.p.a.
Bruno Maineri, APB
Vincenzo Nuzzolo, MBDA Italia S.p.A.
Sandro Benini, ANIE
Alessandro D’Ambrosi, ANIEM
Lorenzo Renzulli, ANMDO
Andrea Maserati, Assintel (Axioma)
Massimo Medugno, Assocarta
Roberto De Lorenzis, Associazione
Nazionale Consulenti Lavoro
Giuseppe Rettaroli, Assogomma
Roberto Marino, Atecap
Marco Cattabiani, Confetra (Fagioli)
Antonio Gatti, Unicredit Banca d’Impresa

Valtro Bolelli, ENI S.p.A. – Exploration 
& Production Div.
Alberto de Rossi, Federacciai (Acciaierie
Venete S.p.A.)
Guido Mesolella, Federazione Union
Tessile
Probo Cecchi, Ferrari S.p.a.
Giuseppe Sassi, Fincantieri Cantieri Navali
Italiani S.p.a.
Alfonso De Cristofaro, Finsiel S.p.a.
Paolo Cesco, FISE Assoambiente
Giovanni Treviso, FITA
Ennio Prandi, Gruppo Italiano Vini
Alessandro Verdelli, OICE
Francesco Carraro, Telecom Italia S.p.A.
Fabio Galbiati, UNI
Antonio Truglio, UIR

AESC/ASSC CERTIFICATION
COMMITTEE

Chair
Alessandro Segale, Università degli Studi
di Milano

Members
Laura Brida, APPA Bolzano
Ezio Dalsass, Assindustria Trento
Andrea Cini, Azienda USL n°6 Livorno
Paolo Scarso Borioli, Fiat Partecipazioni
S.p.A.
Marco Frey, IEFE – Università Bocconi
Cesare Baldini, ITALGAS S.p.A.
Sergio Malcevschi, Università degli Studi
di Pavia
Carlo Galli, WWF Italia
Pierpaolo Masciocchi, Confcommercio

PRODUCT CERTIFICATION
COMMITTEE

Chair
Giovanni Florio, FS Istituto Sperimentale

Members
Marino Melissano, AltroCONSUMO
Mauro Rivara, Autostrada dei Fiori S.p.a.
Andrea Artoni, CONAD
Sergio Coletti, Sis Nord S.r.l.
Maria Elisabetta Guerzoni, Università di
Bologna – DIPROVAL

JAPAN

Chair
Masakatsu Ninomiya, DNV

Members
Shigeru Ueda, Japan Productivity Center
for Socio-Economic Development
Tetsuo Ushirogata, Sumitomo Bakelite
Co., Ltd., Amagasaki Plant
Kimitoshi Sugizaki, Kawasaki Shipbuilding
Corporation, Kobe Shipyard
Hidetoshi Hatakeyama, Mitsubishi Gas
Chemical Company, Inc.
Masaaki Shimizu, The Furukawa Electric
Co., Ltd.
Motoyoshi Makino, Asahi Broadcasting
Corporation

KOREA

Chair
Ahn, In Kyoon, DNV

Members
Cha, Keun Ho, Korea Aviation University
Hong, Jong In, Neville-Clarke Korea Co.,
Ltd.
Hwang, Goo Yun, DNV
Shin, Yong Ho, Hyundai Merchant Marine
Co., Ltd.
Yoon, Seok Choon, CJ Co., Ltd.
Yang, Keun Dae, KMG Consultancy Co.,
Ltd.
Son, Doo Ik, Korea Occupational Safety
and Health Agency (KOSHA)
Choi, Woan Gyoon, EMS NGO

NORWAY

Members
Ørnulf Tvedt
Viktor Berg, Statoil
Rolf E. Bjørnestad, Direktoratet for
Samfunnssikkerhet og Beredskap
Dagfinn Gedde-Dahl
Finn H. Kristensen, Kongsberg Maritime
Sverre L. Nielsen, Norsk Psykologforening
Siri Sand, Aker Kværner Engineering &
Technology AS
Per Ove Øyberg, DNV

SPAIN

Chair
Luis Gutiérrez de Soto, DNV

Members
Antoni Boleda i Roura, Real Autömovil
Club de Cataluña
Buenaventura Guamis López, Universidad
Autónoma de Barcelona
Francisco Sancha Calvo, Institución
Educativa SEK
Julio Sardaña de la Cita, Papyrum Nexus
Luis Cañada Vicinay, Vicinay Cadenas
Szymon Kaminski, DNV

SWEDEN

Chair
Ann-Louise Pått

Members
Jan Forslund, HEBA Fastighets AB
Leif Trogen, Svenska Bankföreningen
Åsa Bergström, Recip AB
Anders Johnson, Naturvårdsverket
Anders Wetterling, Stora Enso Nymölla AB

THE NETHERLANDS

PERSONNEL CERTIFICATION
COMMITTEE
This committee is under revision

UK

Chair
John Darby, Huntsman Chemicals BV

Members
Mike Forrester, Independent
Alan Calder, IT Governance
Stanley Chadwick, Delphi Automotive
Stephen Tupper, Hammonds
Arthur Dransfield, Logica CMG
Anthony Gray, DNV
Douglas Milne, DNV (Secretary)

USA

Chair
Larry Montano, Chevron Phillips Chemical
Company LP

Members
Paul Donnelly, Baker Hughes
Jim Hudson, Bechtel Corporation
R.A. Maddocks, Lockhead Martin Space
Mission Systems & Services
Ted Mercer, Reed Tool Company

Committees
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Management

Executive Board
Miklos Konkoly-Thege
Tor E. Svensen
Henrik O. Madsen
Iain M. Light
Elisabeth Harstad
Paul S. Campbell
Amund W. Skou
Wiggo Smeby
Tom Virik
Torolf Aadnesen

Corporate Units
Paul S. Campbell, Human

Resources and Organisation
Tore Høifødt, Communications
Sven Mollekleiv, Relations and CSR
Amund W. Skou, Legal
Wiggo Smeby, Technology
Torolf Aadnesen, Finance

DNV Maritime
Management Group

Tor E. Svensen, COO
Per Marius Berrefjord, Strategy and

Business Development
Jostein Furnes, Planning & Review
Wilhelm Magelssen, Marketing &

Business Relations
Olav Nortun, Technical Director &

Quality Management
Gunnar Rostad, Human Resources

& Organisation
Terje Staalstrøm, Class Policy

Regional Managers

Peter Bjerager, Japan
Blaine Collins, North and South

America
Eivind Grøstad, Middle East
Ragnar E. Hansen, South East Asia

and Australia
Ioannis Kourmatzis, Southern

Europe
Svein Svarstad, Korea
Helge Dag Tangen, Northern

Europe

Odd P. Torset, Nordic Countries
Andrew Westwood, China

Maritime Units

Espen Cramer, Maritime Solutions
Per Holmvang, DNV Petroleum

Services
Jon Rysst, Maritime Technology

and Production Centre

DNV Certification
Henrik O. Madsen, COO
Patrick Adamcik, Technical
Renato Grottola, Marketing
Ole-Andreas Hafnor, 

Business Development
Gary Shoesmith, Human Resources
Thomas Vogth-Eriksen, Finance

Regional Managers

Tom Backelin, Nordic Countries
Inspection

Ashok Balwani, Middle East,
South and South East Asia

Torger Baardseth, Northern 
and Western Europe

Yehuda Dror, North and South
America

Jahn Henry Løvaas, North East
Asia, Australia and New Zealand

Gaetano Trizio, Central and
Southern Europe

DNV Consulting
Iain M. Light, COO
Øivind Bøgh, SHE/Q
Remi Eriksen, Service Development

Director
Lars Kjønø, Finance
Yngvar Sjoner, Human Resources

Market Sector Leaders

Graham Bennett, Process
Aage A. Enghaug, Transportation
Jan Thomsen, General Industries
Magne Tørhaug, Oil and Gas

Regional Managers

Magne Tørhaug, Norway
Eric Pape, United Kingdom
Dieter Hansen, Germany and

BeNeLux
Stephen Shaw, North America

DNV Technology Services
Elisabeth Harstad, COO
Jørn Lunde, Human Resources
Edvard Lysne, Finance
Harald Sønju, SHE and Q
Knut Ørbeck-Nilssen, Technology

& Knowledge Management

Regional Managers

Donald Brown, Europe and Middle
East

Craig Colby, North America and
West Africa

Kjell Eriksson, Asia Pacific
Nils Andreas Masvie, Eurasia
José Paulo Pontes, South America
Kristen Ulveseter, Nordic

Independent Business Units
Bengt Arne Olsson, DNV Eiendom
Elling Rishoff, DNV Software

Senior Vice Presidents
Tom Backelin
Pål Gudmund Bergan
Paul S. Campbell
Carl Arne Carlsen
Jostein Furnes
Eivind Grøstad
Ole-Andreas Hafnor
Ragnar E. Hansen
Elisabeth Harstad
Tore Høifødt
Ioannis Kourmatzis
Iain M. Light
Henrik O. Madsen
Wilhelm Magelssen
Gunnar Rostad
Gudmundur Sigurthorsson
Amund W. Skou

Wiggo Smeby
Terje Staalstrøm
Svein Svarstad
Tor E. Svensen
Helge Dag Tangen
Ulv Tigerstedt
Odd P. Torset
Magne Tørhaug
Hans Viig
Tom Virik
Torolf Aadnesen

Vice Presidents
Ashok Balwani
Per Marius Berrefjord
Peter Bjerager
Nikolaos Boussounis
Torger Baardseth
Blaine Collins
Yehuda Dror
Aage A. Enghaug
Haakon Eriksen
Luis Gutierrez de Soto
Bjørgulf Haukelid
Jan Einar Horne
Jan Koren
Kåre Kristoffersen
John Lyng
Edvard Lysne
Jahn Henry Løvaas
Sven Mollekleiv
Jouko Nevala
Olav Nortun
Eric Douglas Pape
José Paulo Pontes
Elling Rishoff
Jon Rysst
Magne A. Røe
Jan Thomsen
Odd G. Tonby
Gaetano Trizio
Kristen Ulveseter
Einar O. Venold
Thomas Vogth-Eriksen
Andrew Westwood
Trond Øverland

Management teams and senior managers
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Financial review

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Income statement
Operating revenue 5 957 5 762 5 743 5 813 5 351
Depreciation 116 116 147 128 230
Operating profit 389 459 336 590 181
Net financial income ( expenses ) (52) 0 (80) (125) (63)
Ordinary profit before tax 338 459 257 465 118
Profit for the year 148 308 140 314 54

Balance sheet
Fixed assets 1 974 2 188 2 372 2 244 2 044
Current assets 2 685 2 381 2 009 2 297 2 264
Total assets 4 659 4 569 4 381 4 541 4 308

Equity 3 119 2 964 2 656 2 517 2 202
Provisions and long-term liabilities 435 485 795 783 1 012
Current liabilities 1 105 1 120 930 1 241 1 094

Cash flow items, working
capital and investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 126 130 146 189 183
Working capital 1 580 1 261 1 079 1 056 1 170
Cash flow 291 353 280 400 246

Number of employees 6 236 5 989 5 799 5 599 5 531

FINANCIAL RATIOS

Profitability

Operating margin 6.5% 8.0% 5.9% 10.1% 3.4%
Pre tax profit margin 5.7% 8.0% 4.5% 8.0% 2.2%
Net profit margin 2.5% 5.3% 2.4% 5.4% 1.0%
Return on total assets 9.0% 11.2% 8.7% 14.2% 4.8%
Return on equity 11.1% 16.3% 9.9% 19.7% 5.4%

Liquidity
Current ratio 2.4 2.1 2.2 1.9 2.1
Liquidity reserves 999 852 543 534 684
Liquidity cover 18.3% 16.4% 10.3% 10.5% 13.8%

Leverage
Equity ratio 66.9% 64.9% 60.6% 55.4% 51.1%

KEY FIGURES (Amounts in NOK million)

DEFINITION OF RATIOS

Profitability

Operating margin: 

Operating profit x 100/
Operating revenue

Pre tax profit margin: 

Ordinary profit before tax
x 100/  Operating revenue

Net profit margin: 

Profit for the year x 100/
Operating revenue

Return on total assets:

(Operating profit 
+ Financial income) x 100/
Average total assets

Return on equity:

Ordinary profit before tax
x 100/ Average equity

Liquidity

Cash flow:

Ordinary profit before tax
+ Depreciation 
– Taxes payable

Current ratio:

Current assets/ 
Current liabilities

Liquidity reserves:

Cash and bank deposits 
+ Short-term financial
investments

Liquidity cover:

Liquidity reserves x 100/ 
(Total operating expenses 
– Depreciation)

Leverage

Equity ratio:

Equity x 100/ Total assets
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DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2004 2003 2002 Note 2004 2003 2002

0.0 0.0 0.0 Operating revenue 3 5 957.2 5 762.0 5 742.7

Operating expenses
0.0 0.0 0.0 Payroll expenses 4,5,6 3 538.2 3 358.7 3 196.9
0.0 0.0 0.0 Depreciation 10 116.4 116.0 147.3
0.0 0.0 0.0 Other operating expenses 1 913.4 1 828.1 2 062.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 Operating profit 389.2 459.2 336.3

Financial income and expenses
10.8 22.9 33.6 Financial income 27.1 42.3 51.0
(0.9) (9.9) (25.0) Financial expenses (78.6) (42.4) (130.7)

9.9 13.0 8.6 Net financial income (expenses) 7 (51.5) (0.1) (79.7)

9.9 13.0 8.6 Ordinary profit before tax 337.7 459.1 256.6

(14.6) (8.2) (5.7) Tax on ordinary profit 9 (190.2) (151.5) (116.7)

(4.7) 4.8 2.9 Profit (loss) for the year 147.5 307.6 139.9

Of this minority interests 1.7 0.0 0.0
Of this majority interests 145.8 307.6 139.9

Financial review

INCOME STATEMENT 1 January - 31 December (Amounts in NOK million)
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Financial review

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2004 2003 2002 ASSETS Note 2004 2003 2002

Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets

6.1 14.7 17.6 Deferred tax assets 9 114.6 151.7 107.3

6.1 14.7 17.6 Total intangible fixed assets 114.6 151.7 107.3

Tangible fixed assets
6.7 6.7 6.7 Land, buildings and other property 901.7 897.1 965.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 256.2 266.5 254.9

6.7 6.7 6.7 Total tangible fixed assets 10 1 157.9 1 163.6 1 219.9

Financial fixed assets
240.0 240.0 240.0 Investments in subsidiaries 2 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 Investments in associates 0.0 43.3 40.1
3.8 7.3 9.1 Long-term shareholdings 11 15.0 19.3 20.7
0.0 0.0 0.0 Prepaid pension 6 0.0 94.6 302.6
0.3 0.3 36.7 Other long-term receivables 12 686.8 715.0 681.1

244.1 247.6 285.8 Total financial fixed assets 701.8 872.2 1 044.5

256.9 269.0 310.1 Total fixed assets 1 974.3 2 187.5 2 371.7

Current assets
Debtors

0.0 0.0 12.3 Trade debtors 1 196.5 1 136.4 1 022.3
0.0 0.0 0.0 Work in progress 343.2 321.1 320.1
0.0 0.0 0.0 Other debtors 145.7 119.3 123.9

0.0 0.0 12.3 Total debtors 1 685.4 1 576.8 1 466.3

25.0 0.0 0.0 Short-term financial investments 25.0 0.0 0.0

348.3 365.2 588.6 Cash and bank deposits 13 973.9 804.6 542.5

373.3 365.2 600.9 Total current assets 2 684.3 2 381.4 2 008.8

630.2 634.2 911.0 TOTAL ASSETS 4 658.6 4 568.9 4 380.5

BALANCE SHEET as per 31 December (Amounts in NOK million)
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DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2004 2003 2002 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 2004 2003 2002

Equity
Paid-in capital

283.5 283.5 283.5 Foundation capital 283.5 283.5 283.5

Retained earnings
321.9 326.6 321.8 Other equity 2 826.3 2 680.5 2 372.9

0.0 0.0 0.0 Minority interests 9.2 0.0 0.0

605.4 610.1 605.3 Total equity 16 3 119.0 2 964.0 2 656.4

Liabilities
Provisions

0.0 0.0 0.0 Pension liabilities 6 323.2 310.6 283.6
0.0 0.0 0.0 Deferred tax 9 14.3 24.2 48.7

16.8 16.7 16.6 Other provisions 97.2 149.7 116.5

16.8 16.7 16.6 Total provisions 434.7 484.5 448.8

Other long-term liabilities
0.0 0.0 280.0 Bank loans 14 0.0 0.0 344.9

0.0 0.0 280.0 Total other long-term liabilities 0.0 0.0 344.9

Current liabilities
0.0 0.0 0.0 Overdrafts 0.0 7.8 2.1
0.1 0.1 0.0 Trade creditors 147.5 139.9 147.6
6.1 5.3 5.0 Tax payable 92.5 101.6 12.9
0.0 0.1 0.0 Public duties payable 204.9 167.7 151.6
1.8 1.9 4.1 Other short-term liabilities 660.0 703.4 616.2

8.0 7.4 9.1 Total current liabilities 1 104.9 1 120.4 930.4

24.8 24.1 305.7 Total liabilities 1 539.6 1 604.9 1 724.1

630.2 634.2 911.0 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4 658.6 4 568.9 4 380.5

Financial review

BALANCE SHEET as per 31 December (Amounts in NOK million)

AUDUN BRANDSÆTER

JOHN H. WIIKTOM RUUD

ATLE BERGSHAVEN
Chairman

AXEL C. EITZENC. MAURY DEVINEBENTE RATHE

KNUT VÅGNES UNNI M. AAGEDAL

MIKLOS KONKOLY-THEGE

President and Chief Executive Officer

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DNV
Høvik, 14 April 2005



56

Financial review

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Cash flow from operations
9.9 13.0 8.6 Ordinary profit before tax 337.7 459.1 256.6
0.0 0.0 0.0 Gain/loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets (13.8) (89.1) (18.2)
0.0 0.0 0.0 Depreciation 116.4 116.0 147.3

(6.1) (5.3) (5.0) Tax payable (163.0) (221.7) (123.5)
Change in work in progress, trade

0.0 12.4 (10.6) debtors and trade creditors (74.6) (122.8) 230.5
0.8 (1.7) (4.7) Change in other accruals 50.6 432.3 (395.6)

4.6 18.4 (11.7) Net cash flow from operations 253.3 573.8 97.1

Cash flow from investments
0.0 0.0 0.0 Investments in tangible fixed assets (125.6) (129.7) (146.3)
0.0 0.0 0.0 Sale of tangible fixed assets (sales value) 23.1 174.7 37.8
0.0 0.0 0.0 Currency effects on tangible fixed assets 3.7 (15.7) 40.7

(21.5) 38.2 14.1 Change in other investments 22.6 (1.8) 26.9

(21.5) 38.2 14.1 Net cash flow from investments (76.2) 27.5 (40.9)

Cash flow from capital transactions
0.0 0.0 0.0 Change in overdrafts (7.8) 5.7 1.7
0.0 0.0 160.0 New short- and long-term debt 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.0 (280.0) 0.0 Repayment of debt 0.0 (344.9) (39.1)
0.0 0.0 0.0 Currency effect on debt 0.0 0.0 (10.3)

0.0 (280.0) 160.0 Net cash flow from capital transactions (7.8) (339.2) (47.7)

Liquidity
4.6 18.4 (11.7) Net cash flow from operations 253.3 573.8 97.1

(21.5) 38.2 14.1 Net cash flow from investments (76.2) 27.5 (40.9)
0.0 (280.0) 160.0 Net cash flow from capital transactions (7.8) (339.2) (47.7)

(16.9) (223.4) 162.4 Net change in liquidity during the year 169.3 262.1 8.5

365.2 588.6 426.2 Liquidity at 1 January 804.6 542.5 534.0

348.3 365.2 588.6 Liquidity at 31 December 973.9 804.6 542.5

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 1 January - 31 December (Amounts in NOK million)
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1. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with the Norwegian Accounting Act of 1998 and accounting

principles generally accepted in Norway.

CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES
The consolidated statements include DNV Foundation and all

companies in which DNV Foundation directly or indirectly has

actual control. The group accounts show Det Norske Veritas con-

solidated income statement, balance sheet and statement of cash

flow as a single economic entity.  Subsidiaries follow the same

accounting principles as the parent company. Intercompany

transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated accounts.

Acquired subsidiaries are reported in the financial statements on

the basis of the parent company's acquisition cost. The cost of

the shares in the parent company’s books is eliminated against

the equity in the subsidiary at the date of acquisition. The acqui-

sition cost is allocated by attributing fair values to the identifi-

able assets and liabilities acquired. Surplus value in excess of the

fair value of identifiable net assets is reported in the balance

sheet as goodwill. Goodwill is amortised linearly through the

income statement over its expected useful economic life. 

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES
When translating the financial statements of the foreign sub-

sidiaries to Norwegian currency, the items in the income state-

ment are translated at the average exchange rate for the finan-

cial year and items in the balance sheet are translated at the

exchange rate at the balance sheet date. The translation differ-

ence arising is included in the income statement as other finan-

cial income/other financial expenses.

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES
Investments in subsidiaries are valued at the cost method in the

parent company accounts. The investment is valued as cost of

acquiring shares in the subsidiary, provided write down is not

required. Write down to fair value is carried out when the re-

duction in value is caused by circumstances which may not be

regarded as incidental, and deemed necessary by generally

accepted accounting principles. Write downs are reversed 

when the cause of the initial write down is no longer present.  

Investments in associated companies are valued in accordance

with the equity method. The share of profits is based on profits

after tax in the associated company, less internal gains and pos-

sible amortisation of surplus value caused by the cost of shares

being higher than the acquired share of equity. In the income

statement, the share of profit is stated as financial income/

financial expenses.

REVENUE RECOGNITION AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Revenue from sale of services is recognised according to the

percentage of completion method. Work in progress is recog-

nised at estimated sales value. Movement in work in progress 

is included in operating revenue.

CLASSIFICATION AND VALUATION 
OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Assets meant for permanent ownership or use are classified 

as fixed assets. Other assets are classified as current assets.

Receivables to be paid within one year are always classified as

current assets. Short- and long-term liabilities are classified 

correspondingly.

Current assets are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Short-term debt is recognised at nominal value at time of

establishment. 

Fixed assets are valued at cost. However, if a decline in value is

expected not to be temporary, fixed assets are written down to

recoverable amount. Fixed assets with a limited useful economic

life are depreciated in accordance with a linear depreciation

plan. Long-term debt is recognised at nominal value at time 

of establishment.

DEBTORS
Trade receivables and other current receivables are recorded in

the balance sheet at nominal value less provisions for doubtful

debts. Provisions for doubtful debts are calculated on the basis

of individual assessments. In addition, for the remainder of

accounts receivables outstanding balances, a general provision 

is made to cover expected losses.

FOREIGN CURRENCY
Monetary items denominated in a foreign currency are trans-

lated at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Financial

instruments, mainly forward exchange contracts and currency

swaps, are used to hedge all significant items denominated in

the most common foreign currencies. These hedges are includ-

ed at market value at 31 December.

Realised and unrealised currency effects are included on a net

basis in either other financial income or other financial expenses.

Premiums paid for currency and interest rate options are 

capitalised and amortised over the life of the contract. 

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Financial investments not regarded as long-term are classified as

current assets in the balance sheet. These short-term financial

investments are valued at market value at the balance sheet date

based on a portfolio assessment. 

Financial review

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Long-term shareholdings where DNV does not exercise signifi-

cant influence are recognised at cost. Each investment is written

down to net realisable value if lower than cost.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Property, plant and equipment are capitalised and depreciated

over the estimated useful economic life. Maintenance costs are

expensed as incurred, whereas improvement and upgrading are

assigned to the acquisition cost and depreciated along with the

asset. If carrying value of a non-current asset exceeds the esti-

mated recoverable amount, the asset is written down to the

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of

the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present

value.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Research and development costs are expensed when incurred.

PENSIONS
Pension costs and pension liabilities for the defined benefit

plans are estimated on the basis of linear earnings and assump-

tions of: discount rate, projected annual salary adjustments,

pension and other payments from the national insurance fund,

expected annual return on plan assets and actuarial assump-

tions of deaths, voluntary resignations etc. Plan assets are valued

at fair value and deducted from net pension liabilities in the

balance sheet. Changes in the pension liabilities due to changes

in pension plans are recognized over 10 years. Effects of

changes in estimates, changes in assumptions and deviations

from actuarial assumptions are recognised over 10 years. 

TAX
The tax expense in the income statement includes taxes payable

and change in deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are calculated

based on the temporary differences existing between book values

and tax values, together with tax loss carry-forwards at the end of

the accounting period. Tax increasing and tax reducing tempo-

rary differences expected to reverse in the same period are offset

and calculated on a net basis. Deferred tax assets are recognised

to the extent utilisation of these assets can be justified.

Revaluation of land has been treated as a permanent difference.

LITIGATION
If Det Norske Veritas Group is involved in litigation, and a claim

has been made, then provisions for these claims are made in the

accounts based on a best estimate of the validity and amount of

the claim.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUBSIDIARIES OF DET NORSKE VERITAS FOUNDATION

Det Norske Veritas Foundation owns 100% of the shares in Det Norske Veritas Holding AS.

Company Business Share Owner- Book
office capital ship value

Det Norske Veritas Holding AS Bærum 240 100% 240.0

Det Norske Veritas Holding AS owns 2 subsidiaries 100%, Det Norske Veritas AS and Det Norske Veritas Eiendom AS. Det Norske Veritas AS 
has 79 subsidiaries. With the exception of some financial transactions DNV is operating through DNV Holding AS and its subsidiaries around 
the world.

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR DET NORSKE VERITAS HOLDING AS:

Income Statement 2004 2003 2002

Total operating revenue 5 957.2 5 762.0 5 742.7
Total operating expenses 5 568.0 5 302.8 5 406.4

Operating profit 389.2 459.2 336.3
Net financial income (expenses) (61.5) (13.1) (88.3)
Tax on ordinary profit (175.5) (143.3) (111.0)

Profit for the year 152.2 302.8 137.0

Of this minority interests 1.7 0.0 0.0
Of this majority interests 150.5 302.8 137.0

Balance sheet 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Fixed assets Equity
Intangible fixed assets 108.5 137.0 107.3 Paid in capital 240.0 240.0 240.0
Tangible fixed assets 1 151.2 1 156.9 1 213.2 Retained earnings 2 504.4 2 353.9 2 051.1
Financial fixed assets 697.7 864.6 998.7 Minority interests 9.2 0.0 0.0

Total fixed assets 1 957.4 2 158.5 2 319.2 Total equity 2 753.6 2 593.9 2 291.1

Current assets Liabilities
Provisions 417.9 467.8 449.8

Debtors 1 685.4 1 576.9 1 468.9 Bank loans 0.0 0.0 64.9
Cash and bank deposits 625.6 439.4 0.0 Current liabilities 1 096.9 1 113.1 982.3

Total current assets 2 311.0 2 016.3 1 468.9 Total liabilities 1 514.8 1 580.9 1 497.0

TOTAL EQ.

TOTAL ASSETS 4 268.4 4 174.8 3 788.1 AND LIAB. 4 268.4 4 174.8 3 788.1

Financial review

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amounts in NOK million)
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3. OPERATING REVENUE
DET NORSKE VERITAS

GROUP

2004 2003 2002

Business area

Maritime 2 478.1 2 364.0 2 480.0
Certification 1 840.7 1 829.4 1 737.4
Consulting and Technology Services 1 369.1 1 321.9 1 325.4
Other 269.3 246.7 199.9

Total operating revenue 5 957.2 5 762.0 5 742.7

Geographical area
Nordic countries 2 481.8 2 334.4 2 355.6
Europe and Africa 1 578.1 1 541.3 1 362.6
Asia Pacific 1 287.5 1 224.8 1 294.2
North and South America 609.8 661.5 730.3

Total operating revenue 5 957.2 5 762.0 5 742.7

4. PAYROLL EXPENSES

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

0.0 0.0 0.0 Salaries 2 550.4 2 363.5 2 323.2
0.0 0.0 0.0 Payroll tax 415.7 370.2 376.3
0.0 0.0 0.0 Pension costs 413.7 443.4 363.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Other contributions 158.4 181.6 134.4

0.0 0.0 0.0 Total payroll expenses 3 538.2 3 358.7 3 196.9

0 0 0 Average number of employees 6 113 5 894 5 699

5. REMUNERATION AND LOANS TO PRESIDENT, BOARD OF DIRECTORS ETC.
President and Chief Executive Officer Miklos Konkoly-Thege has an annual basic salary of NOK 2 600 000. Konkoly-Thege does not participate in 
the Group's incentive schemes. Konkoly-Thege's total salaries and other remunerations for 2004 amounts to NOK 2 752 491. His pension rights
are 26/30*66% of basic salary. If asked to resign by the Board of Directors before reaching age 65 years (in 2008), Konkoly-Thege has the right
to early retirement pension, which, at the point of resignation is equivalent to one year's basic annual salary for the first year, decreasing on a
linear basis to normal pension at the age of 65 years. Calculated pension premiums to DNV Pension Funds in 2004 amounted to NOK 789 633.

As per 31 December 2004, the President and Chief Executive Officer, Miklos Konkoly-Thege had the following loans from Det Norske Veritas AS:

Amount Interest Repayment period Security

1 271 296 1.63 % as per 31.12.2004 within 75 years of age (year 2018) 1st priority mortgage  

Total remuneration paid to members of the Board of Directors amounted to NOK 1 544 375 in 2004. Remuneration to the members of the
Control Committee amounted to NOK 152 000 in 2004.

Remuneration to the auditors amounted in 2004 to NOK 270 000 for Det Norske Veritas Foundation. Remuneration to Ernst & Young AS for
other entities in Norway amounted to NOK 1.4 million for regular audit, NOK 1.1 million for tax related services and NOK 1.1 million for other
services. Remuneration to Ernst & Young affiliates for regular audit outside Norway amounted to NOK 2.9 million and NOK 0.6 million for other
services, and fees to other auditors amounted to NOK 4.8 million for regular audit and NOK 1.9 million for other services.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amounts in NOK million)



6. PENSION COSTS, PLAN ASSETS AND PENSION LIABILITIES
Det Norske Veritas has both defined benefit pension plans and contribution pension plans. The defined benefit pension plans are covered
through separate pension funds or through arrangements with insurance companies. The future pension benefits are based on the employee's
salary level at the time of retirement and on the number of years of membership. The basis for calculating the pension cost and the pension
liabilities included in the accounts is shown in this note.

Contribution to the Group's pension plans are made in accordance with common actuarial methods in the country where the pension plan is
administered. The pension assets in Norway are invested as follows:

Market value of plan assets in Norway 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2004 2003 2002

Buildings and property 147.0 147.0 147.0
Norwegian bonds, long-term 0.0 136.5 155.0
Mutual equity funds 957.7 775.1 446.2
Norwegian bonds, short-term 770.9 826.1 741.4
Non-Norwegian bonds, short term 457.8 93.8 0.0
Index linked bonds 0.0 0.0 65.7
Bank accounts, other assets and liabilities (214.1) (156.4) (76.9)

Total  market value of plan assets 2 119.2 1 822.1 1 478.4

Actual return on plan assets 248.1 323.3 (129.9)

Funded Norwegian defined Other defined benefit
benefit pension plans pension plans

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Net present value of this year's pension contribution 135.5 134.5 107.7 53.1 45.3 81.0
Interest expense on pension liabilities 120.3 118.6 120.9 42.8 35.3 34.9
Expected return on plan assets (109.3) (88.7) (107.7) (28.2) (21.7) (23.8)
Payroll tax 20.6 23.2 17.0 1.2 1.2 1.2
Amortisation 97.4 112.7 61.3 8.3 19.6 10.8
Curtailment/pension plan changes 0.0 0.0 0.0 (11.0) (5.0) 0.0

Net pension cost 264.5 300.3 199.2 66.2 74.7 104.1

Plan assets and pension liabilities Funded Norwegian defined Other defined benefit
benefit pension plans pension plans

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Market value of plan assets 2 119.2 1 822.1 1 478.4 538.5 451.2 340.5
Actuarial present value of pension liabilities (2 562.9) (2 593.6) (2 216.9) (929.5) (878.8) (706.2)
Payroll tax (62.6) (108.8) (104.1) (14.2) (13.8) (12.2)
Unrecognised net loss 482.3 974.9 1 127.3 106.0 130.8 112.2

Net prepaid pension (liabilities) (24.0) 94.6 284.7 (299.2) (310.6) (265.7)

Hereof recorded as plan assets 0.0 94.6 284.7 0.0 0.0 17.9
Hereof recorded as pension liabilities (24.0) 0.0 0.0 (299.2) (310.6) (283.6)

The calculation of the pension liabilities in Norway is based on the following assumptions 2004 2003 2002

Discount rate 5.0% 5.0% 6.0%
Projected annual salary adjustment 4.0% 4.0% 4.5%
Projected annual increase in pension benefit 1.5% 1.5% 2.0%
Projected annual increase of Norwegian Government basis pension 1.5% 1.5% 2.0%
Expected annual return on plan assets 6.0% 6.0% 7.0%

Ordinary retirement age in Det Norske Veritas is 67 years. Some managers and employees are entitled to retire before the age of 67.
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7. FINANCIAL INCOME AND FINANCIAL EXPENSES 

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

7.1 0.0 4.7 Return on short-term financial investments 7.1 0.0 4.7
0.6 0.0 0.0 Return on long-term shareholdings - realised 0.6 0.0 0.0
2.8 1.1 (8.7) Return on long-term shareholdings 2.8 (3.0) (15.7)
0.0 0.0 0.0 Profit (loss) from investment in associates 0.0 3.2 (8.2)
0.3 18.6 25.8 Net interest received from group companies 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.0 1.8 3.1 Other interest received 16.6 35.4 45.1

(0.5) (6.7) (14.5) Other interest expenses (21.2) (12.2) (23.3)
(0.3) (1.8) (1.8) Other financial expenses (57.4) (23.5) (82.3)

10.0 13.0 8.6 Net financial income (expenses) (51.5) (0.1) (79.7)

8. FINANCIAL MARKET RISK
Det Norske Veritas has revenue and expenses in 70 currencies. Of these, 5 currencies (NOK, USD, EUR, SEK and GBP) make up for approximately
75% of the total revenue. In many currencies DNV has a natural hedge through a balance of revenue and expenses. Major imbalances on the
balance sheet are hedged through forward exchange contracts.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amounts in NOK million)

DNV assists the space industry
in managing risk in connection

with the use of information, 
systems, and software.
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9. TAX

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Tax expense consists of
6.1 5.3 5.0 Norwegian wealth tax 6.1 5.3 5.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Norwegian income tax 46.6 68.1 11.1
0.0 0.0 0.0 Income tax outside Norway 111.0 148.3 107.4
8.5 2.9 0.7 Change in deferred tax in Norway 26.1 (65.7) 20.3
0.0 0.0 0.0 Change in deferred tax outside Norway 0.4 (4.5) (27.1)

14.6 8.2 5.7 Tax expense 190.2 151.5 116.7

Tax on ordinary profit at 28% 94.6 128.5 71.9
Tax effect of:
Foreign tax exempt branches (4.0) (13.0) (8.2)
Wealth tax 6.1 5.3 5.0
Differences between tax rates in Norway and abroad 35.2 11.1 4.9
Permanent differences 58.3 19.6 43.1

Tax on ordinary profit 190.2 151.5 116.7

Net tax-reducing/tax-increasing 
temporary differences

(0.2) (24.3) (22.9) Fixed assets 62.7 52.1 126.4
0.0 0.0 0.0 Current assets (4.2) 33.3 12.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 Liabilities (276.8) (315.8) (91.3)

(21.7) (28.2) (40.0) Tax loss to be carried forward (107.6) (184.3) (214.8)

(21.9) (52.5) (62.9) Basis for deferred tax asset/liability (325.9) (414.7) (167.7)

28% 28% 28% Tax rates applied 10%-45% 10%-40% 10%-45%

(6.1) (14.7) (17.6) Deferred tax asset (114.6) (151.7) (107.3)

0.0 0.0 0.0 Deferred tax liability 14.3 24.2 48.7

Financial review
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10. FIXED ASSETS

Land, buildings Office equip-
and other ment, fixtures 
property and fittings

Cost at 1 January 2004 1 262.9 1 244.0

Additions in 2004 19.8 98.9
Disposals in 2004 (1.1) (8.1)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December 2004 (379.9) (1 078.6)

Book value at 31 December 2004 901.7 256.2

Depreciation 2004 14.1 102.3

Economic life More than 10 years 3-10 years
Depreciation plan Linear Linear

Det Norske Veritas Eiendom AS has a tenancy agreement with Det Norske Veritas Pension Fund for Supplementary Pension Benefits for an office
building in Stavanger. In 2004 the rent amounted to NOK 9.2 million. The tenancy agreement is non-terminable for 30 years starting in 1984.

Det Norske Veritas Pension Fund for Supplementary Pension Benefits has an option to sell the property to Det Norske Veritas at book value at 
the end of the period (year 2014).

11. LONG-TERM SHAREHOLDINGS

Ownership Market Book
Company value value

Røisheim Eiendom AS 4.1 % 0.3

Industrifinans SMB III AS 4.9 % 3.5 3.5

Total long-term shareholdings in DNV Foundation 3.8

Hua-Eng-Wei International Testing Co.Ltd. 49.0% 7.6

Ship Manoeuvring Simulator Center AS 40.0% 1.8

Trace Tag International Ltd. 62.1% 0.0

Vité Inc. 14.3% 0.0

Computas AS 11.8% 1.1

SA Isoscope 10.0% 0.0

Marintek AS 9.0% 0.0

IT Fornebu AS 2.1% 0.0

NDT Training AB 50.0% 0.7

Total long-term shareholdings in subsidiaries 11.2

Total long-term shareholdings 15.0

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Amounts in NOK million)
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12.  OTHER LONG TERM RECEIVABLES
DET NORSKE VERITAS

GROUP

2004 2003 2002

Paid in capital to DNV’s Pension funds 411.0 336.0 336.0
Subordinated loan capital to DNV's Pension funds 105.0 180.0 180.0
Loans to employees 60.3 64.6 64.9
Other long term receivables 110.5 134.4 100.2

Total other long term receivables 686.8 715.0 681.1

13.  CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
Det Norske Veritas Holding AS has entered into an agreement for a corporate bank account system with DnB NOR Bank ASA, where most 
of DNV’s legal entities participate. The agreement includes an overdraft facility of NOK 50 million. 

Det Norske Veritas AS has entered into an agreement for a cash pool system with ABN Amro, where most of DNV’s legal entities in the Euro
countries participate. The agreement includes an overdraft facility of EUR 2.75 million, guaranteed by DNV Holding AS.

Balances on bank accounts participating in the corporate bank account system/cash pooling system are considered as internal assets or liabilities
vis-à-vis other DNV participants. For DNV on a consolidated basis, the net total balance of NOK 116.0 million with DnB NOR Bank ASA and EUR
1.0 million with ABN Amro are included in Cash and bank deposits/(overdrafts) in the balance sheet at 31 December.

Of the total liquidity reserve NOK 345.7 million was invested in money market fund, and classified as cash and bank deposits.

14.  BANK LOANS
In January 2004 Det Norske Veritas Holding AS signed an agreement for a NOK 750 mill multi-currency revolving credit facility with 
an international bank syndicate. The facility expires in January 2009. The facility is undrawn as per year-end 2004.

The credit agreements supporting this facility includes a negative pledge clause, and also restrict Det Norske Veritas ability to freely dispose 
of main real estate holdings and principal subsidiaries. The credit agreement further requires that DNV on a consolidated basis maintains a 
certain minimum level of equity and that the net interest bearing debt does not exceed a set level relative to the equity. 
DNV was well within these limits at year-end.

15. GUARANTEES

DET NORSKE VERITAS DET NORSKE VERITAS
FOUNDATION GROUP

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

0.0 0.0 848.4 Guarantee commitments not included in the accounts 25.1 17.6 26.3

16. EQUITY
Foundation Other DNV Subsidiaries of Minority DNV

capital equity Foundation DNV Foundation interests Group

Equity 31 December 2003 283.5 326.6 610.1 2 353.9 0.0 2 964.0

Minority interests at aquisition 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.5 7.5

Profit (loss) for the year (4.7) (4.7) 150.5 1.7 147.5

Equity 31 December 2004 283.5 321.9 605.4 2 504.4 9.2 3 119.0

Financial review
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GRI

Only the indicators that are currently seen to be relevant to DNV’s worldwide operations as a service

provider have been included. DNV will continuously assess the indicators used and the need to further

broaden the reporting practices.

The economic performance indicators suggested in the GRI guidelines have not been referenced 

in the index below. Most of these indicators, however, are covered in the financial review. The financial

statements in this report have been prepared in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act of 1998

and accounting principles generally accepted in Norway.

This index shows where you can find information on the main reporting elements and indicators of the

GRI. In some cases, reference is made to information that may be found on our web site: www.dnv.com.

Global Reporting Initiative index

DNV has made use of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) guidelines and the

principles of the UN Global Compact when selecting environmental and social

indicators to measure DNV’s performance.

GRI REFERENCE INDICATORS PAGE

General

1.1 Sustainability vision and strategy 3, 5,7–13, web

1.2 Chief executive statement 5

2.1 - 2.8 Organisational profile Cover, 3, 7–13, 15–35, 52–65

2.10 - 2.16 Report scope Cover, 7–13, 70 

2.17 - 2.18 Report profile 70

3.1 - 3.7 Structure and Governance 7–13, 46–50, web

3.13 - 3.20 Policies and management systems 37–39, 40–41, 43, web

GRI REFERENCE INDICATORS PAGE

Environmental Performance Indicators

EN3 Energy 41

EN8, EN10, EN11 Emissions, Effluents and Waste 41

EN17 Renewable energy 41

Others Environmental impact through services 41

GRI REFERENCE INDICATORS PAGE

Social Performance Indicators

LA1, LA2 Employment 11, 37–39

LA4 Labour/Management relations 37–39

LA5 - LA8 Health and Safety 40–41, 45

LA9 Training and Education 37–39

LA10, LA11 Diversity and Opportunity 37–39, 46, 50

HR1 Human Rights 43

HR4 Non-discrimination 43

SO1 Community 43, 44–45

SO2 Bribery and Corruption 43
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DNV is the world-leading certification body for offshore wind farms.
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